

GOVERNMENT OF THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH ADMINISTRATION

APPLICATION FOR REVISION OF RCRA BASE PROGRAM AUTHORIZATION

PROGRAM DESCRIPTION

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Į.

US EPA ARCHIVE DOCUMENT

SECTION I	1
A. Relationship to Previously Submitted Program Descriptions	1
B. Areas for which the District is Seeking Authorization	1
C. Organization of Program Description	2
SECTION II PROGRAM SCOPE, STRUCTURE, COVERAGE, AND PROCESSES	53
A. Scope and Coverage of Program	3
Description of the Scope and Coverage of the District Program	3
Identification of Clusters and Checklists for which Authorization is Sought	4
Public Notice for Program Revision	5
B. Differences between Federal and District Regulations	5
• DC PROHIBITED ACTIVITIES (§ 4018)	5
• EXCLUSION DIFFERENCES(§§ 4100.13 and 4101)	6
• SMALL QUANTITY GENERATORS (§4102)	6
TREATABILITY STUDY SAMPLES (§4101.5)	7
NOTIFICATION OF REGULATED WASTE ACTIVITY (§4200.14-15)	7
INTERNATIONAL SHIPMENTS	7
• NO SATELLITE ACCUMULATION (Chapter 42)	7
ADDITIONAL MANIFEST REQUIREMENTS (Chapter 42)	7
• NO TOLLING AGREEMENTS (Chapter 42)	8
• HW GENERATOR PERMITS (§4208)	8
TRANSFER FACILITY PERMITS (§ 4303)	8
• TREATMENT, STORAGE AND DISPOSAL (TSD) FACILITIES (Chapters 44 and 46)	9
• DC ENFORCEMENT PROVISIONS (Chapter 40)	9
• UNIVERSAL WASTE RULE (Chapter 48)	9
• OTHER	10
Table 1: General Correspondence between State Regulations and Federal Regulations	11
SECTION III DISTRICT AGENCY RESPONSIBILITIES	13
A. Organization and Structure of Hazardous Waste Program	13
General	13
Intra-Agency Responsibilities	13
Office of the Senior Deputy Director for Environmental Health (EHA)	13
 BUREAU OF HAZARDOUS MATERIAL AND TOXIC SUBSTANCES (BHMTS) 	13
 Hazardous Waste Division 	14
 Toxic Substances Division (TSD) 	14
 Underground Storage Tank Division (USTD) 	14

	Lead Poisoning Prevention Division (LPPD)	14			
	Clean Land Program (CLP)	14			
	BUREAU OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY (BEQ)	14			
	Air Quality Division (AQD)	15			
	• Water Quality Division (WQD)	15			
	Office of Enforcement, Compliance and Environmental Justice (OECEJ)	15			
	Special Projects Office (SPO)	15			
	Office of Adjudication and Hearings (OAH)	16			
	Office of the Chief Financial Officer	16			
	Inter-Agency Responsibilities	16			
	Department of Consumer and Regulatory Affairs (DCRA)	16			
	Department of Insurance and Security Regulation	16			
	Office of Corporation Counsel	17			
	• Board of Appeals and Review (BAR)	17			
	• D.C. Emergency Management Agency (DCEMA)	17			
	• D.C. Metropolitan Police Department (MPD)	17			
	D.C. Fire and Emergency Medical Services Department	18			
	• D.C. Department of Public Works (DPW)	18			
	• Environmental Crimes Unit (ECU)	18			
	• U.S. Department of Transportation	18			
B.	Descriptions of Relevant MOUs Between Agencies	19			
C					
C.	Division of Responsibilities between the District and EPA for Portions of the Program for which the District does not have Authorization	e 19			
	District does not have Authorization	19			
D.	PERMITTING	20			
I.	PERMIT ISSUANCE	20			
	1. EPA Permitting	20			
	2. EPA Overview of District Permits	20			
	3. District Permitting	21			
	4. Joint Permitting Process	22			
II.	PERMIT ADMINISTRATION	23			
11.	1. EPA	23			
	2. District	23			
		20			
SE	CTION IV STAFFING AND FUNDING RESOURCES	25			
А.	Staffing Description	25			
_					
В.	Changes in Staffing and Internal Reorganization since the Base	27			
C.	Changes in Size of the Regulated Community	27			
Т	able IV-1. Hazardous Waste Handler Universe	28			
Т	able IV-2. Annual Hazardous Waste Quantities Generated	29			
D.	Program Changes that have Significant Impact on the District's Efficiency and Existing Program				
Reso	Resources 30				
Б		•••			
Е.	Itemization of Estimated Costs and Sources of Funding for Revision	30			

US EPA ARCHIVE DOCUMENT

ĺ

ר ז ז	Fable IV-3. BUDGET AND SOURCES OF FUNDING Fable IV-4. SUMMARY OF FY'00 PROGRAM BUDGET Fable IV-5. PERSONNEL FY'00 Fable IV-6. PERSONNEL FY'01 Fable IV-7. DEPRONDEL FY'02	31 32 33 33
	Fable IV-7. PERSONNEL FY'02 Fable IV-8. SUMMARY OF PROPOSED PROGRAM BUDGET FOR FY'01	34 35
	Table IV-9. SUMMARY OF PROPOSED PROGRAM BUDGET FOR FY'02	36
	CTION V DISTRICT PROCEDURES AND PERMITTING PROGRAM	37
A.	Regulatory Development	37
В.	Notification	38
C.	Manifest Tracking System	39
D.	Coordination of Information Regarding Interstate and International Shipments	40
E.	Permitting Procedures	40
F.	Interim Status Facilities	43
G.	Biennial Reports	43
H.	Enforcement-General Inspections	43
I.	Groundwater Monitoring Inspections	45
J.	Waste Minimization/Pollution Prevention Program	45
K.	Availability of Information Procedures	46
L.	Appeals Procedure	46
SE	CTION VI COMPLIANCE TRACKING AND ENFORCEMENT	47
A.	 Identification of Members of the Regulated Community Identification of revisions that have the potential to significantly increase the size of the RCRA 47 	47 universe
	• Strategies and methods for identifying new members of the regulated community	47
B.	Inspections and Analysis Workload	48
	• Types of inspections needed to monitor compliance with new program activities	48
	 Additional sampling and analysis needed to monitor compliance with new program activities Impact on compliance monitoring of existing program 	48
	• Impact on compliance monitoring of existing program	48
C.	Data Management	49
D.	Compliance Monitoring Resources	49
	• Additional resources required to implement compliance monitoring of new program activities	49
	• Level and mix of resources that the State has available to handle new responsibilities	49

Ĺ

C.

Ż

E. Enforcement Process	50
Timeframes	51
SECTION VII ESTIMATED REGULATED ACTIVITIES TABLE VII - 1	55 56
REGULATION	56
UNIVERSE AFFECTED	56
DISTRICT RESPONSE	56
SECTION VIII COPIES OF STATE FORMS	58

Æ

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA APPLICATION FOR REVISION OF THE RCRA BASE PROGRAM AUTHORIZATION

SECTION I

A. Relationship to Previously Submitted Program Descriptions

The District of Columbia Department of Health, Environmental Health Administration, Bureau of Hazardous Materials and Toxic Substances, Hazardous Waste Division is the agency responsible for administering the hazardous waste regulations for the District. This document provides a description of the hazardous waste regulatory program administered by the Department. It replaces the Program Description (PD) previously submitted as a part of the State's application for base program authorization.

Possible harm to human health and the environment caused by the mismanagement of hazardous waste led the District to pass D.C. Law 2-64, the "District of Columbia Hazardous Waste Management Act of 1977", effective March 16, 1978 (D.C. Code § 6-701 et seq.). The primary intent of this act was to ensure safe and effective hazardous waste management through the establishment of a program of regulation over the storage, transportation, treatment, and disposal of wastes in the District. This law authorized a regulatory program essentially consistent with the federal program established pursuant to the Resources Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) 42 U.S.C.H. § 6901 et seq., as amended. The purpose of this application submission is to maintain consistency as the federal program continues implementing regulatory enhancements.

B. Areas for which the District is Seeking Authorization

This Program Description reflects the evolution of the District's program since the base program was authorized, and also summarizes how the Federal regulatory requirements for the base program and Non-HSWA Clusters I through VI, HSWA Clusters I and II, RCRA Clusters I through VIII, are implemented by the District, except for corrective action (Revision Checklists 17L, 44B, 44C and 121) and the following non-checklist items: "availability of information (AI), the requirements for existing and newly regulated surface impoundments provided in RCRA §2003(j)(1)-(9) and (13) (SR1 and SR2), radioactive mixed waste (MW), and burning and blending of hazardous waste (BB). The criminal penalties for used oil violations (CP), as originally intended for authorization, addressed the violations of the requirements under 40 CFR 266.40 through 266.44. These provisions have been replaced by the recycled used oil management standards in 40 CFR Part 279. The District has adopted the 40 CFR Part 279 standards and subjects used oil violators to the same criminal penalties as hazardous waste violators, as required under 40 CFR 271.16(a)(3)(ii). For this reason, the District is not seeking authorization for nonchecklist item CP. This Program Description has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of 40 CFR §271.6."

C. Organization of Program Description

Section II describes the scope, structure, coverage, and process of the hazardous waste program and includes a discussion of the legislative and regulatory provisions the District administers as well as a discussion of the differences between the Federal and District's laws and regulations. This section also addresses the checklists for which the District is applying and indicates where copies of the completed checklists may be located. This discussion provides a concise, definitive statement of which program areas the District has adopted and for which it is seeking authorization, as well as the program areas for which EPA remains responsible. Section III provides a description of District agency (ies) responsible for administering the program with the aid of an organizational chart. The specific divisions that comprise the agency (ies) are discussed and their individual responsibilities are examined.

Section IV deals with staffing and funding procedures and identifies hazardous waste staff and funding resources required to carry out the activities that are the subject of this program revision. This section distinguishes between new resources and existing resources being assigned to the new responsibilities. The impact on the existing authorized program of adding the additional program areas is also examined. Section V describes the District procedures that will be used to implement the program revision. Section VI examines the District's compliance tracking and enforcement processes and resources. Section VII indicates the estimated regulated activities as of the date of the Program Description, and Section VIII is set aside for copies of District forms.

SECTION II -- PROGRAM SCOPE, STRUCTURE, COVERAGE, AND PROCESSES

A. Scope and Coverage of Program

Description of the Scope and Coverage of the District Program

In 1976, the District of Columbia (the District) acquired a planning grant from EPA to research and develop a hazardous waste program for the District. The District conducted a survey to identify generators of hazardous waste and evaluate the characteristics and quantities of such waste. Although the District is not heavily industrialized, numerous generators of hazardous waste were identified. These included federal facilities, printing and engraving related enterprises, academic institutions, dry cleaning facilities, auto repair shops, health care facilities, industrial art shops, exterminators and private laboratories. The problems encountered were associated with improper storage, stockpiling, transportation and disposal of hazardous chemicals and human biological and pathological waste. Though the volume of waste generated in the District is small in comparison to other states, the high density of the population magnifies the potential impact from the mismanagement of this waste. It was determined to be technologically and financially feasible for hazardous waste generators to manage their waste in a manner that created less of an adverse environmental impact thus reducing the potential for harm.

The District's "Solid Waste Regulations 71-21", which became effective August 28, 1971, mentioned hazardous waste, but the purpose of these regulations was to establish minimum standards for the storage, collection, transportation and disposal of solid waste. The District's Hazardous Waste Management Act of 1977, however, directs the Mayor to develop a regulatory scheme for the management of hazardous waste.

The District of Columbia developed a comprehensive hazardous waste management program. Although based upon the Federal RCRA program, the District's Hazardous Waste Management Regulations, adopted pursuant to D.C. Law 2-64 (District of Columbia Hazardous Waste Management Act of 1977, effective March 16, 1978), D.C. Law 5-103 (Hazardous Waste Management Amendments Act of 1984), as amended, are broader in scope or more stringent in several areas. The broader in scope and more stringent provisions are clearly identified in the Consolidated Corporation Counsel's Statement and associated Checklists.

The Department amended the D.C. Hazardous Waste Management Act of 1977 with the D.C. Hazardous Waste Management Amendments Act of 1984 (D.C. Law 5-103, effective August 10, 1984) and the District of Columbia Hazardous Waste Management Act of 1977 Amendment Act of 1989 (D.C. Law 8-37, effective October 18, 1989).

On July 22, 1983, the District adopted analogs to 40 CFR Parts 260 through 265 (July 1982 ed.), 40 CFR Part 270 (July 1983 ed.) and 40 CFR Part 124, Subpart A (July 1983 ed.) as amended by the District. These regulations were amended on September 28, 1984. The District received final authorization from EPA for the base program on March 22, 1985. Regulations were subsequently amended on June 21, 1985, July 10, 1987, February 19, 1988, and October 18, 1989. On March 1, 1996, the District amended and re-codified its regulations. The new regulations became effective September 29, 2000.

The regulations are found in the District of Columbia Municipal Regulations (DCMR), Title 20: Environment, Chapters 40 - 54.

The level and degree of coverage and regulation of hazardous waste generators, transporters, and treatment, storage, disposal and recycling facilities are comparable to the RCRA regulatory program. The District program, like the federal program, is a cradle to grave program covering all pertinent aspects of hazardous waste management. Table 1 shows a general correspondence of the District regulations with the Federal regulations. Section II B of this document discusses where the District's program is more stringent or broader in scope than the Federal program.

The District program provides adequate enforcement relative to the federal program. Under the right-of-entry provisions, the District has the authority to enter any place where hazardous wastes are or have been generated, stored, treated, transported or disposed of for the purposes of enforcing the act.

The District has a broad range of enforcement capabilities ranging from informal notices of violation to civil and criminal penalties of up to \$25,000 in penalties per violation and up to one-year imprisonment.

Civil fines may be imposed as alternative sanctions for any infraction of the provisions of the statute or regulations. Other enforcement capabilities include administrative hearings, compliance orders, suspension and revocation of permits, settlement agreements, cost recovery, and the ability to issue cease and desist orders in the event of an imminent and substantial endangerment to the public health and the environment.

Identification of Clusters and Checklists for which Authorization is Sought

The regulatory program described in this document reflects the base program for which the District is already authorized. In addition, the regulations in Non-HSWA Clusters I through VI, HSWA Clusters I and RCRA Clusters I through VIII, for which the District is seeking authorization are also described. While included in these clusters, the District is not seeking authorization for: state availability of information (AI), burning and blending of hazardous waste (BB), radioactive mixed waste (MW) and corrective action (Revision Checklists 17L, 44A, 44C, and 121). These portions of the Federal hazardous waste program will be applied for at a later date. The nonchecklist items related to surface impoundments (SR1 and SR2), which are part of HSWA Cluster I, are also not being sought for authorization because they are not applicable in the District due to the District's prohibition of these units.

The District is also not applying for the criminal penalties for used oil violations (CP) because the violations that they addressed have been replaced by the recycled used oil management standards at 40 CFR Part 279. The District is seeking authorization for 40 CFR Part 279 and subjects used oil violators to the same criminal penalties as hazardous waste violators, as required under 40 CFR 271.16(a)(3)(ii).

The District has adopted the universal waste requirements relative to the Federal program as of July 1, 1998 and 63 FR 71225 (Revision Checklist 176). The District also regulates mercury-containing lamps as a universal waste, but is not seeking authorization for this universal waste at this time because the District's requirements, while consistent with the Federal requirements, were developed before the promulgation of the Federal hazardous waste lamp rule published July 6, 1999, effective January 6, 2000 (64 FR 36466, Revision Checklist 181). Authorization will be sought for this rule as part of the next authorization package.

A complete description of the regulatory provisions for which the District is seeking authorization and their associated checklists are attached as an appendix to the Consolidated Corporation Counsel Statement and to the Supplemental Corporation Counsel Statement that addresses RCRA Cluster VIII.

Public Notice for Program Revision

A Notice of Proposed Rulemaking for the D.C. Hazardous Waste Management Regulations (20 DCMR Chapters 40-54) was published in the <u>District of Columbia</u> Register on May 19, 2000 for a 30-day public review and comment period.

Also, the regulations were submitted to the District of Columbia Council on June 1, 2000 for a 45-day review period.

The regulations were deemed effective on September 29, 2000.

B. Differences between Federal and District Regulations

The following is an outline that highlights the differences between the Federal and District programs. An identification and detailed explanation of specific areas that are more stringent or broader in scope are included in the Consolidated Corporation Counsel Statement and associated checklists as well as in the Supplemental Corporation Counsel Statement and associated checklists that address RCRA Cluster VIII.

• DC PROHIBITED ACTIVITIES (§ 4018)

• Use of a surface impoundment for the treatment, storage, or disposal of a hazardous waste disposal;

- Use of land treatment for hazardous waste disposal;
- Use of landfills and waste piles for hazardous waste disposal;
- The burning, processing or incineration of hazardous waste, hazardous waste fuels, or mixtures of hazardous wastes and other materials in any type of incinerator, boiler, or industrial furnace;
- The land disposal of hazardous waste or any mixture of hazardous waste and another constituent;
- The burning of off-specification or on-specification used oil, including burning in a space heater;
- The use of used oil as a dust suppressant;
- The underground injection of hazardous waste.

• EXCLUSION DIFFERENCES (§§ 4100.13 and 4101)

The federal program includes an exclusion from the used oil rebuttable presumption for metalworking oils/fluids containing chlorinated paraffins meeting certain requirements. The District subjects these oils to the presumption, no matter how they are recycled or disposed of, making the District's requirements more stringent.

The District does not have an analog to 40 CFR 261.4(a)(4) that excludes source, special nuclear, or by-product material as defined by the Atomic Energy Act of 1954 from the federal definition of solid waste. This difference makes the District's program broader in scope.

• SMALL QUANTITY GENERATORS (§4102)

Under the federal regulations, generators of 0-100 kilos of hazardous waste are conditionally exempt from regulation; generators of 100-1000 kilos of hazardous waste are small quantity generators and are subject to a lesser degree of regulation than large quantity generators who generate over 1000 kilos of hazardous waste per month.

The District regulates all generators of hazardous waste. Generators of 0-100 kilos of hazardous waste, or up to 1 kilo of acute hazardous waste, are considered small quantity generators and may accumulate up to 600 kilos of hazardous waste on site for up 180 days. However, they are subject to the same disposal restrictions as the federal large quantity generators. Generators of over 100 kilos of hazardous waste, or over 1 kilo of acute hazardous waste, are considered "generators" and are treated like large quantity generators under the federal scheme. They can only accumulate waste for up to 90 days and are subject to full regulation. DC's regulation of generators of less than 100 kilos of hazardous waste is critical, since most of DC's generators of

hazardous waste, including many of the dry cleaners, auto repair shops and print shops, fall into this category. Thus, DC's regulation is broader in scope than the federal regulation.

The District sets the quantity limitation for any residue or contaminated soil, waste or other debris resulting from the clean-up of any spill of an acute hazardous waste at 50 kilos or less per month while the federal limit is at 100 kilos per month. This difference makes the District's requirements more stringent than the federal requirements.

Generators of 0-100 kilos of hazardous waste can send their waste off-site to the same types of disposal facilities as the analogous federal generators; however, these disposal sites must be outside the District. Additionally, the District generators are prohibited from disposing of their wastes on site.

• TREATABILITY STUDY SAMPLES (§4101.5)

The District regulations also set more stringent limits on the quantities for samples of hazardous waste generated or collected for the purposes of performing treatability studies, which may be subject to reduced requirements under both the District and Federal requirements. (§§4101.5-4101.9)

• NOTIFICATION OF REGULATED WASTE ACTIVITY (§4200.14-15)

Under both the federal and District regulations, generators of hazardous waste must file a Notification of Regulated Waste Activity and obtain an EPA ID number. The District regulations also explicitly authorize the issuance of provisional EPA ID numbers for one-time generators of hazardous waste.

Persons generating or collecting samples of hazardous waste for the purpose of performing treatability studies must also file a Notification of Regulated Waste Activity with the Department under District regulations. (§4101.5 – 4101.9)

• INTERNATIONAL SHIPMENTS

The District requires copies of all reports and notifications sent to EPA with regard to international shipments also be sent to the Division.

• NO SATELLITE ACCUMULATION (Chapter 42)

The District prohibits satellite accumulation, which, under the federal regulations, allows a generator to keep up to 55 gallons of hazardous waste on site near the point of generation, without managing it as a hazardous waste.

• ADDITIONAL MANIFEST REQUIREMENTS (Chapter 42)

One of the cornerstones of cradle to grave regulations is the manifest that must accompany the waste and be signed by each handler.

Under District regulations, the generator must provide a copy of the manifest to DOH within 7 days of giving waste to a transporter and within 7 days after the generator receives the manifest back from the designated facility. This is in addition to federal requirements.

• NO TOLLING AGREEMENTS (Chapter 42)

Under the federal scheme, if a generator has a standing contract with a hazardous waste transporter and reclamation facility to reclaim its hazardous waste, the generator is not required to manifest the waste. The District requires manifesting of waste in this situation.

HW GENERATOR PERMITS (§4208)

Generator permits are mandated by the DC Hazardous Waste Management Act and have been added in the current amendments. The amendments provide for generator permits to be issued beginning **April 1, 1999** in order to place them on the same schedule as the biennial reports. Generators must apply by March 1 of every even numbered year. Fees are \$200 biennially for generators of 500 kilos of hazardous waste per month or less and \$500 biennially for generators of greater than 500 kilos of hazardous waste per month. This fee structure takes into account that most of the generators of 500 kilos or less per month are small businesses, such as dry cleaners, auto repair shops and print shops, which also have to pay business license fees in the District. A higher fee might have a negative impact on the availability of services in the District.

• TRANSFER FACILITY PERMITS (§ 4303)

This is also a DC-specific provision. Under the District requirements, hazardous waste transfer facilities are defined as a transportation related facility where wastes are stored for 10 days or less. Hazardous Waste transfer facilities must meet the general facility requirements for hazardous waste treatment, storage and disposal facilities (including items such as employee training and emergency preparedness procedures) as well as obtain a hazardous waste transfer facility permit under §4303. The fees for these permits are \$500 initially and \$2500 after processing for a 3-year period. Under the Federal requirements, a transfer facility is subject to such requirements only when the facility stores waste for more than 10 days or does not meet the 40 CFR 262.30 requirements. These differences make the District's requirements both more stringent and broader in scope.

Many of the hazardous waste transfer facility requirements parallel requirements for DC solid waste transfer facilities. In the past, restrictions on hazardous waste transfer facilities have been less stringent than restrictions on solid waste transfer facilities, which made the sets of regulations inconsistent. As part of this rule making, this inconsistency was fixed:

• TREATMENT, STORAGE AND DISPOSAL (TSD) FACILITIES (Chapters 44 and 46)

Because DC prohibits land disposal, incineration and underground injection of hazardous waste as noted above, there are no HW treatment or disposal facilities in the District. The District allows the use of waste piles, but they cannot be used for disposal. In addition, all waste piles must be covered, but they are subject to the more stringent design and operating requirements for uncovered waste piles found in the federal requirements. The District also does not allow the 40 CFR 264.251(e)&(f) waiver/exemption.

Since the District prohibits disposal facilities, only clean closure is allowed for storage and treatment facilities.

The demonstration of financial responsibility has to be made specifically for the facility located in the District and if one financial mechanism is used for multiple facilities, all of the facilities must be in the District. Additionally, the District subjects all units and facilities to the post-closure financial requirements, rather than just those listed at 40 CFR 264.140(b)(1)-(4).

The District requires that the entire facility, rather than just the waste management portions, be 200 feet from a fault having movement in Holocene time.

• DC ENFORCEMENT PROVISIONS (Chapter 40)

These are based on the District's HW Management Act and parallel the enforcement provisions for underground tanks and the DC Water Pollution Control Act.

• UNIVERSAL WASTE RULE (Chapter 48)

One of the amendments that the District has adopted is the Universal Waste Rule that provides for a different and more relaxed set of regulations governing some hazardous wastes including certain types of batteries, thermometers, and pesticides. The District has added mercury-containing lamps to this list (which were just recently added to the federal list subsequent to July 1, 1998). Handlers of universal waste don't have to comply with the strict labeling, containment and manifest requirements applicable to generators and transporters of other hazardous wastes. However, the District regulations are more stringent than the federal regulations, in that in order for a waste (other than a pesticide) to qualify for regulation as a universal waste, it must be recycled.

In addition, the District does not make a distinction between small and large quantity handlers of universal waste, subjecting all handlers to the more stringent large quantity handler requirements. All handlers are subject to a 1,000-kg storage limit rather than the 5,000-kg limit under the federal requirements.

• OTHER

The District regulations prohibit the burning of HW in boilers or industrial furnaces; therefore, the regulations are abbreviated, but are included to the extent they are relevant to generators and transporters who send waste outside of DC for burning. (Chapter 45)

No used oil is allowed to be burned in DC, but the applicable Used Oil Regulations are adopted for generators and transporters who send waste outside DC. (Chapter 49)

Although land disposal is prohibited in the District, the land disposal restrictions have been adopted for generators and transporters who send their waste outside the District, because these handlers are subject to requirements that must be met before the waste leaves the District. In addition, these land disposal requirements were included to inform the District handlers of what requirements must be met once the waste leaves the District. (Chapter 50)

The Munitions Rule provides for special treatment of military munitions, to facilitate handling of these materials by the military. The District has adopted additional requirements that serve either to clarify or to make the munitions requirements broader in scope than their Federal counterparts. (Chapter 45)

Interim Status – Because the District has no interim status TSD facilities, these federally required provisions have been incorporated by reference, but are subject to the limitations outlined at §4401.2 that are analogous to the more stringent requirements in Chapter 44 for permitted facilities. (Chapter 44)

Table 1: General Correspondence between State Regulations and Federal Regulations

EPA REGULATION Code of Federal Regulations (CFR)	STATE REGULATION	DESCRIPTION
PART 260	20 DCMR Chapter 40, Part of 20 DCMR Chapter 54 (260.10 definitions)	Hazardous Waste Management System: General
PART 261	20 DCMR Chapter 41, Part of 20 DCMR Chapter 54 (261.2 definitions)	Identification and Listing of Hazardous Waste
PART 262	20 DCMR Chapter 42	Standards Applicable to Generators of Hazardous Waste
PART 263	20 DCMR Chapter 43	Standards Applicable to Transporters of Hazardous Waste
PART 264	20 DCMR Chapter 44, Part of 20 DCMR Chapter 54 (264.141, 264.1031,and 264.1081 definitions)	Standards for Owners and Operators of Hazardous Waste Treatment, Storage, and Disposal Facilities
PART 265	20 DCMR § 4401	Interim Status Standards for Owners and Operators of Hazardous Waste Treatment, Storage, and Disposal Facilities
PART 266	20 DCMR Chapter 45, Part of 20 DCMR Chapter 54 (266.201 definitions)	Standards for the Management of Specific Hazardous Wastes and Specific Types of Hazardous Waste Management Facilities
PART 268	20 DCMR Chapter 50, Part of 20 DCMR Chapter 54 (268.2 definitions)	Land Disposal Restrictions

EPA REGULATION Code of Federal Regulations (CFR)	STATE REGULATION	DESCRIPTION
PART 270	20 DCMR Chapter 46, Part of 20 DCMR Chapter 54 (270.2 definitions)	The Hazardous Waste Permit Program
PART 273	20 DCMR Chapter 48, Part of 20 DCMR Chapter 54 (273.6 definitions)	Standards for Universal Waste Management
PART 279	20 DCMR Chapter 49, Part of 20 DCMR Chapter 54 (279.1 definitions)	Standards for the Management of Used Oil
PART 124	20 DCMR Chapter 47	Permit Procedures

SECTION III -- DISTRICT AGENCY RESPONSIBILITIES

A. Organization and Structure of Hazardous Waste Program

• General

The District of Columbia's Department of Health (DOH), is designated as the "lead agency" for the District of Columbia's hazardous waste regulatory program. The previously authorized program was administered through the Department of Consumer and Regulatory Affairs. Pursuant to the authority of D.C. Code § 1-242(12), Reorganization Plan No. 4 of 1996, effective July 17, 1996 instituted a reorganization that reassigned all environmental programs to the DOH. Also, Mayor's Order 98-55, effective April 15, 1998, delegated the Mayor's authority pursuant to D.C. Law 2-64, the "District of Columbia Hazardous Waste Management Act of 1977," to the Director of the Department of Health. As a result of this reorganization and Mayor's Order, the hazardous waste program is currently being implemented in the Hazardous Waste Division of the Bureau of Hazardous Material and Toxic Substances (BHMTS) of the Environmental Health Administration (EHA) in the Department of Health.

The organization of the Department of Health is shown in the Appendices. The Bureau of Hazardous Material and Toxic Substances is located in the Environmental Health Administration. The structures of the Bureau of Hazardous Material and Toxic Substances and Hazardous Waste Division are illustrated in the Appendices.

The District will assume the lead on all portions of its hazardous waste program for which authorization has been received. HSWA provisions for which the District has not received authorization and program areas that are not delegable to States will remain the responsibility of EPA. Permitting will be a joint effort.

Intra-Agency Responsibilities

The Bureau of Hazardous Material and Toxic Substances works in cooperation with other Divisions within the Environmental Health Administration.

• Office of the Senior Deputy Director for Environmental Health (EHA)

This office is responsible for the overall coordination and direction of each program area within the Administration.

• BUREAU OF HAZARDOUS MATERIAL AND TOXIC SUBSTANCES (BHMTS)

This office reports to the Office of the Deputy Director for Environmental Health. It advises the Director of Health, Deputy Director for Environmental Health and Assistant Deputy Director for Environmental Health with respect to the Bureau's activities associated with policy development, planning and management for the programs under its control towards maximizing public health and environmental protection. It is responsible for the overall daily coordination and direction of the four divisions within the Bureau.

Hazardous Waste Division

The Hazardous Waste Division (HWD) has primary responsibility for administering the hazardous waste regulations for the District. The regulations are published in Title 20 (Environment) (September 2000) Chapters 40 through 54 of the District of Columbia Municipal Regulations (DCMR).

The major program responsibilities of the HWD include permitting and enforcement activities, drafting regulations, planning and policy development, collecting and managing data, providing consultation in technical and procedural matters, closure approvals and site monitoring reviews at treatment, storage and disposal facilities, information management and regulations and coordinating efforts among State, District, and federal agencies in matters relating to hazardous waste. The HWD may interface with the other Divisions in the Bureau.

• Toxic Substances Division (TSD)

The HWD cooperates with this Division regarding the proper management of discarded pesticide products identified as exhibiting the hazardous waste characteristic of toxicity as well as the recycling provisions of the Universal Waste regulations.

• Underground Storage Tank Division (USTD)

The HWD cooperates with this Division in the management of Underground Storage Tanks that contain used oil. HWD will work with USTD in those instances where there has been a reported release from an underground tank containing used oil.

• Lead Poisoning Prevention Division (LPPD)

The HWD will interface with this Division for the disposal of lead-based paint waste that fails the Toxicity Characteristic test.

• Clean Land Program (CLP)

The HWD will interface with this new program within the Bureau by providing technical guidance and support in the areas of Brownfields, Voluntary Clean-up and Superfund.

• BUREAU OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY (BEQ)

This Bureau is responsible for the overall daily coordination and direction of

the following four divisions: Air Quality Division; Water Quality Division, Watershed Protection Division and the Fisheries and Wildlife Division.

• Air Quality Division (AQD)

This Division has the responsibility to protect the District's air quality and is concerned with potential air contaminants from hazardous waste activities. The AQD is responsible for certifying generator and TSD facility compliance status under Subparts AA and BB of 40 CFR Part 265, as incorporated at §4401, or under §§4428 through 4459, as applicable. The HWD will refer to AQD any suspected air pollutant releases from tanks and containers regulated under Subpart CC of 40 CFR 265, as incorporated at §4401, or under §§4428 through 4459, as applicable.

• Water Quality Division (WQD)

This Division is charged with the primary responsibility of preventing, reducing and eliminating water pollution from both point and non-point sources. WQD lends assistance to HWD in matters concerning monitoring of the surface water and ground water quality, especially where there is a potential for contamination of the waters from releases of hazardous waste. WQD assists with such matters as the evaluation of groundwater and surface water quality for levels of contamination. They will also assist in phases of inspections that involve discharges of hazardous waste to the sanitary and storm sewer system.

• Office of Enforcement, Compliance and Environmental Justice (OECEJ)

This office assists the EHA Deputy Director in the enforcement of all District and Federally delegated environmental health laws and regulations. As of October 1, 1999, this office has received Corporation Counsel status. This office with the Office of Adjudication and Hearings coordinates Notices of Infraction under the Civil Infractions Program. The HWD will refer violations of the HWMA and regulations to this office for assistance in transmitting these cases to the Office of the Corporation Counsel for misdemeanor and felony violations. This office is currently in the process of developing procedures and protocols for this function.

• Special Projects Office (SPO)

This office provides an overall link to EHA's primary funding agency, USEPA, at various levels within Region III and EPA Headquarters. It coordinates activities, as needed, through the Office of the EPA Liaison for the District of Columbia. Initiates and executes environmental program development activities of significance to the District of Columbia such as Building Pollution Prevention and Waste Minimization Program Capacity within EHA. Assesses and evaluates the need to strengthen existing programs within EHA. It provides leadership in assisting the newly formed DC Environmental Crimes Task Force to organize for results. Finally, it provides liaison to the Mayor's Citizens Environmental Advisory Council. It interacts with the HWD in the development of Waste Minimization plans and will also work to develop fact sheets and other outreach mechanisms to inform the regulated community of new universal waste and used oil requirements.

• Office of Adjudication and Hearings (OAH)

This office was created in October 1999 to give the Department of Health independent capacity to adjudicate, manage and track administrative enforcement actions. OAH is charged with hearing administrative hearings and litigation brought by the Hazardous Waste program under the Department's statutory jurisdiction.

• Office of the Chief Financial Officer

This office is responsible for all financial aspects of the Department of Health, including, but not limited to, grants management, procurement, loading and modification of budgets, preparation of interim and final financial status reports (FSRs), and maintenance of all financial records for auditing purposes.

Inter-Agency Responsibilities

Other agencies and groups within the District of Columbia Government work with the Department of Health in implementing the District's hazardous waste program. Specifically:

• Department of Consumer and Regulatory Affairs (DCRA)

Within this department, the Business Regulation Administration (BRA) is responsible for the licensing of businesses in the District. One of its roles is to issue and renew licenses to businesses that may handle hazardous waste. They do not issue permits to hazardous waste TSD facilities. This function is handled by the HWD. As part of the HWD's process for identifying generators and non-notifiers, this administration will be requested to notify HWD when they issue licenses for businesses in certain SIC codes.

• Department of Insurance and Security Regulation

This department implements and enforces laws governing the insurance and securities industry in the District of Columbia. It protects the interests of District of Columbia consumers by ensuring that insurance companies, agents, brokers and securities businesses, investment advisors, investment representatives, and broker/dealer operating securities businesses comply with the insurance and securities law and regulations. This department will assist in the review of requirements for hazardous waste management facility insurance, to ensure consistency with overall D.C. insurance requirements. It will review the insurance policies of the hazardous waste management facilities for compliance with the liability regulations.

• Office of Corporation Counsel

This office conducts all legal business for the District of Columbia including suits instituted by and against the government. It provides a variety of legal services, including matters typically handled by State Attorneys General, District or State's Attorneys, and City or County Attorneys. The Office of Legal Counsel provides assistance in reviewing and certification of legal sufficiency of legislative amendments and regulations to implement the program. This office issues Attorney General Statements and legal opinions. The Law Enforcement Division is responsible for advising the Department on enforcement actions and prosecuting cases referred by the Department of Health's Office of Enforcement and Regulatory Compliance.

• Board of Appeals and Review (BAR)

This board has the appellate jurisdiction over enforcement actions taken by DOH. Any person adversely affected by an action pursuant to the HWMA statute and regulations is entitled to a hearing before the Mayor. Such hearing shall be held in accordance with other contested case procedures under the provisions of the D.C. Administrative Procedures Act (D.C. Code §1-1509). The decision on the appeal shall be final.

• D.C. Emergency Management Agency (DCEMA)

This office is directed to perform its mission by coordinating the development, preparation and implementation of the District's emergency plan for oil and hazardous substance incidents, with the assistance of other District Government agencies and officials. The "District of Columbia Public Emergency Act of 1980" D.C. Act 3-274, effective March 5, 1981 authorizes the development of an *Emergency Operations Plan*. This plan includes emergency situations where the health, safety or welfare is threatened by transportation accidents with injurious environmental contamination which threatens or causes damage to life, health or property, and other related emergency type situations. Annex H of the Plan covers Radiological and Hazardous Materials Incidents. Also, under the requirements of the Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act (SARA) Title III, "The Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act of 1986', the DCEMA has developed the *Comprehensive Hazardous Materials Emergency Response Plan*, which delineates the roles and responsibilities of all affected agencies, both District and Federal, in responding to any hazardous materials incidents.

Under each of these plans, the HWD will respond when notified by the Mayor's Command Center, which is housed in DCEMA. The purpose of the HWD response is to provide technical guidance in the treatment and/or disposal of chemical contaminants that may have been released to the environment. If the HWD is the first agency to be notified of an emergency situation, it will notify the Mayor's Command Center of the emergency. The Mayor's Command Center will then be responsible for notifying other affected agencies. See the appendices.

• D.C. Metropolitan Police Department (MPD)

This department will assist District agencies, including the HWD, in responding to

various emergency situations. In instances where hazardous wastes may be explosive and pose an imminent danger to public health and the environment, the bomb squad of the Special Operations Division will assist and coordinate in the destruction or disposal of such waste. This unit will handle enforcement of DOT transporter requirements for hazardous waste by on-the-road monitoring and surveillance activities with enforcement proceedings initiated where so warranted. The MPD has adopted the DOT Motor Safety Requirements.

• D.C. Fire and Emergency Medical Services Department

This unit will assist in responses to emergencies in which hazardous materials are involved and which pose an imminent to danger to public health and the environment. The Hazardous Materials Response Unit will respond to all incidents involving hazardous materials.

• D.C. Department of Public Works (DPW)

This department enforces provisions of the D.C. Municipal Regulations (DCMR), Title 18: Vehicles and Traffic. Its functions include: inspection of motor vehicles, motor vehicle equipment size, weight, construction and loading of vehicles, establishment of routes for the transportation of hazardous cargo and tunnel restrictions as they pertain to the Federal transportation Regulations established by DOT Order #1100.11, July 27, 1967 (49 CFR 170.1). DPW interfaces with HWD in incidents of abandoned wastes on public space, vacant lots, etc. Technical assistance is provided to DPW by the HWD in conducting Household Hazardous Waste collection programs.

• Environmental Crimes Unit (ECU)

This unit was established to respond to incidents of illegal dumping under the D.C. Illegal Dumping and Enforcement Act of 1994 (D.C. Law 10-181). The act establishes a special fund to be used for purposes of cleaning, clearing, disposing, and remediating any site where the unlawful disposing of solid waste (definition includes hazardous materials) has occurred. The ECU is funded by DPW and consists of staff from DPW and the MPD. The unit contacts the HWD when it is suspected that illegally dumped materials are hazardous. They bring with them police authority to investigate incidents as misdemeanors or felonies, which allows them to bring cases directly to the U.S. Attorney.

• U.S. Department of Transportation

There is a Cooperative Agreement between the Metropolitan Police Department and the Federal Department of Transportation, Highway Administration, Bureau of Motor Carrier Safety. This provides for the reciprocal exchange of compliance information on violations of motor carrier safety regulations pertaining to hazardous waste which comes to the attention of either agency during investigations and inspections regarding DOT transporter and generator requirements.

B. Descriptions of Relevant MOUs Between Agencies

The Special Projects Office within EHA is currently developing a Memorandum of Understanding to create an Environmental Crimes Task Force, which would include the Department of Health, DPW, MPD, etc., to address interactions between these agencies.

There are currently no other MOUs in effect with other agencies, however the Emergency Response Plan within the Emergency Management Agency effectively acts as an MOU between all District agencies, since it delineates agency responsibilities in the event of a hazardous materials incident.

C. Division of Responsibilities between the District and EPA for Portions of the Program for which the District does not have Authorization

The District is not seeking authorization for: Corrective Action (Revision Checklists 17L, 44A, 44C, and 121). These portions of the Federal hazardous waste program will be applied for at a later date. Until the District is authorized for corrective action, EPA will continue to be responsible for this portion of the program. The District is not seeking authorization for corrective action at this time because there is only one TSD facility in the District and corrective action issues at this site will continue to be handled by EPA. The District will provide assistance and cooperation to EPA in all corrective action issues as requested.

Authorization is also not being sought for the non-checklist items related to surface impoundments (SR1 and SR2), which are part of HSWA Cluster I. These units are prohibited in the District; thus, this portion of the Federal program is not applicable in the District and will not need to be managed by EPA. The District is also not seeking authorization for non-checklist items related to radioactive mixed waste and the burning and blending of hazardous waste. The former is a non-HSWA provision and the latter is an optional HSWA provision and as such neither will have to be managed by EPA.

The District is also not applying for State Availability of Information (AI), but under the Memorandum of Agreement, the District agrees to make information available to the public to the same extent that EPA would.

The District is adopting the universal waste requirements relative to the Federal program as of July 1, 1998 and 63 FR 71225 (Revision Checklist 176). The District also regulates mercury-containing lamps as a universal waste, but is not seeking authorization for this universal waste at this time because the District's requirements, while consistent with the Federal requirements, were developed before the promulgation of the Federal hazardous waste lamp rule (64 FR 36466, Revision Checklist 181). Authorization will be sought for this rule as part of the next authorization package.

D. PERMITTING

I. PERMIT ISSUANCE

The following section delineates the responsibilities of both EPA and the District in the issuance of permits to Treatment, Storage and Disposal facilities.

1. EPA Permitting

Upon authorization of the District program, EPA will suspend issuance of Federal permits for hazardous waste treatment, storage, and disposal facilities for which the District is receiving authorization. If EPA promulgates standards for additional regulations mandated by HSWA that are not covered by the District's authorized program, EPA will issue and enforce RCRA permits in the District for these new regulations until the District receives final authorization for equivalent and consistent District standards. If EPA promulgates new standards requiring a permit modification, then EPA may, pursuant to 40 CFR § 270.42(b)(6)(vii), extend the time period for final approval or denial of a modification request until such time that the District receives authorization for the new standards. At the time the District program is approved in the new areas, EPA will suspend issuance of Federal permits in the District.

EPA will also transfer any pending permit applications, completed permits or pertinent file information to the District within thirty (30) days of the approval of the District program or other mutually agreed upon schedule in conformance with the conditions of this Agreement.

The District and EPA have agreed to a joint permitting process for the joint processing and enforcement of permits for those provisions of HSWA for which the District does not have authorization. As the District receives authorization for additional provisions of HSWA, EPA will suspend issuance of Federal permits in the District for those provisions.

2. EPA Overview of District Permits

While EPA may comment on any permit application or draft permit, EPA's overview function will focus primarily on those facilities identified by the District or EPA in the annual District grant work plan or anything identified as a priority in EPA National Guidance.

In accordance with 40 CFR § 271.19, EPA may comment in writing on any draft permit or proposed permit modification, whether or not EPA commented on the permit application. EPA shall notify the District of its intent to comment on a District draft permit within thirty (30) days of receipt. EPA will comment within forty-five (45) days of receipt or will request an extension for those comments as warranted. Where EPA indicates in a comment that issuance, modification, re-issuance, termination or denial of the permit would be inconsistent with the approved District program, EPA shall include in the comment:

- a. A statement of the reasons for the comment (including the section of the District law or regulations that support the comment); and
- b. The actions that should be taken by the District in order to address the comments (including the conditions that the permit would include if it were issued at EPA.)

EPA will send a copy of its written comments to the permit applicant.

The District and EPA will attempt to reach concurrence on permit conditions before the District issues the draft permit or approves proposed permit modifications. EPA shall withdraw its comments if satisfied that the District has met or refuted its concerns and shall also provide the permit applicant with a copy of the withdrawal.

The Director and the Regional Administrator agree to meet or confer whenever necessary in a timely manner to resolve a disagreement between their staffs on the terms of any RCRA permit to be issued by the District. Unless otherwise agreed to, the District and EPA will work toward resolving all issues within thirty (30) days.

Under §3008(a)(3) of RCRA, EPA may terminate a District-issued permit in accordance with the procedures of 40 CFR part 124, subpart E, or bring an enforcement action in accordance with the procedures of 40 CFR part 22 in the case of a violation of a District program requirement. In exercising these authorities, EPA will observe the conditions established in 40 CFR § 271.19(e), and any other applicable authorities.

EPA may review file information at District offices or request a copy of any permit application, draft permit or proposed permit modification, statement of basis or fact sheet, and any supporting documentation that went into the development of the draft permit. The District will provide this information within one (1) week of request.

3. District Permitting

The District is responsible for expeditiously drafting, circulating for public review and comment, issuing, modifying, reissuing and terminating RCRA permits for those hazardous waste treatment and storage facilities contained in the authorized provisions of the District's program. The District shall do so in a manner consistent with RCRA, as amended by HSWA, all applicable Federal requirements, and the annual District grant work plan. The District commits to meet the 2005 GPRA RCRA permitting goal, which requires that at least 90% of existing hazardous waste management facilities have approved controls in place to prevent dangerous releases to air, soil, and groundwater.

The District will issue, modify or reissue all permits contained in the authorized portions of the District's program in accordance with DC Code §§ 1-1501 *et seq.*, 6-703 and 6-705, and 20 DCMR, Chapter 44, and will include as permit conditions all applicable provisions of 20 DCMR Chapters 46 and 47. This applies to permits issued after final authorization but for which the processing may have begun before final authorization.

In permits issued pursuant to the District's authorized Program, the Department will ensure that compliance tasks are described in clear, unambiguous and plain language to the extent practicable. The compliance tasks should be clear, measurable and definable, thereby lending themselves to greater enforceability. For example: "Conduct periodic inspections" should be replaced with "Inspect on a daily/weekly/biweekly/monthly basis. A log book documenting inspections shall be maintained at the facility for a period of 3 years."

The District's permitting process will conform to 20 DCMR Chapters 46 and 47, that are analogous to 40 CFR parts 270 and 124.

When circumstances arise that warrant extraordinary action, the District may exercise the variance authorities established in DC Code, §§ 6-701(a) 1 & 2; 6-703(b); 6-705(a); 6-706 and 6-709 (1995 Repl. Vol.). The District will not exercise its variance authority, including emergency administrative orders, unless the result is as stringent as and consistent with the Federal program, and consistent with other State programs. Compliance schedules contained in issued permits will require compliance with applicable standards as soon as possible.

The District will consider all comments EPA makes on permit applications and draft permits. The District will satisfy or refute EPA's concerns on a particular permit application, proposed permit modification, or draft permit in writing before issuing the permit or making the modification.

4. Joint Permitting Process

Pursuant to § 3006(g)(1), and in accordance with the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments of 1984, EPA has the authority to issue or deny permits or those portions of permits to facilities in the District of Columbia for the requirements and prohibitions in or stemming from HSWA, until the District's program is amended to reflect those requirements and prohibitions, and authorization is received for the portion or portions of the program.

EPA and the District will establish a joint permitting process for the issuance of RCRA permits in the District of Columbia. This joint permitting process is established in accordance with §3006(c)(3) of RCRA. Details of joint permitting activities will be negotiated yearly through the annual District grant work plan. The duties and responsibilities of EPA and the District for joint permitting shall also be specified in the annual District grant work plan.

The details of the joint permitting process as contained in the District grant work plan shall be reviewed and revised as often as necessary, but no less often than annually to assure its continued appropriateness.

Upon authorization of the District for any of the provisions of the HSWA, the specifics of the Joint Permitting Agreement as set out in the annual District grant work plan shall be amended to reflect the authorization. EPA will perform oversight of District corrective action activities on an ongoing basis throughout each grant fiscal year in accordance with

work sharing responsibilities established in the annual grant work plan as resources allow. The District will assist EPA in meeting the District's share of EPA's 2005 GPRA goals for corrective action environmental indicators, details of which will be established in the annual grant work plan.

II. PERMIT ADMINISTRATION

1. EPA

EPA will administer the RCRA permits or portions of permits it has issued to facilities in the District until they expire or are terminated. EPA will be responsible for enforcing the terms and conditions of the Federal portions of the permits while they remain in force. Upon authorization of HSWA regulations, the EPA and the District will work toward establishing District authorities that will allow District oversight and enforcement in addition to Federal oversight and administration. Prior to authorization of additional authorities, EPA and the District may establish interim agreements that will allow District work sharing activities. When the District assumes full responsibility of an EPA permit, or incorporates the terms and conditions of the Federal permits in District RCRA permits, or issues District RCRA permits to those facilities, EPA will terminate those permits pursuant to 40 CFR part 270 and rely on the District to enforce those terms and conditions subject to the terms of an acceptable District/EPA Enforcement Agreement.

2. District

The District will review all hazardous waste permits that were issued under District law before the effective date of authorization in accordance with 40 CFR § 271.13(d), and to modify, or revoke and reissue, those permits necessary to require compliance with the amended District Program. The District shall notify EPA of any permits not equivalent to federal permit requirements, including any permits that have been issued but are pending administrative or judicial appeal. Except for these non-equivalent permits, once EPA has determined that the District has fulfilled the requirements of 40 C.F.R § 271.13(d), EPA will terminate the applicable Federal permit, or Federal portion of the permit, pursuant to the procedures in 40 CFR § 124.5(d), notify the District that the District is authorized.

Where the District permit is not equivalent to federal permit requirements, the District may modify, or revoke and reissue, its permit as necessary to require compliance with its authorized program in a manner consistent with RCRA as amended by HSWA. If the District does not modify, or revoke and reissue, a permit equivalent to the federal permit, EPA will administer and enforce its permit until it expires or is terminated.

Upon the effective date of an equivalent District permit, EPA will terminate the federal permit pursuant to 40 CFR §§ 271.8(b)(6) and 124.5 (d). EPA will notify the permittee

by certified mail of its intent to terminate the federal permit, and give the permittee 30 days in which to agree or object to termination of the permit.

The District will resolve all District permit appeals in a manner consistent with its authorized RCRA program.

SECTION IV -- STAFFING AND FUNDING RESOURCES

A. Staffing Description

The Hazardous Waste Program is implemented by members of the Department assigned to one division within the Bureau of Hazardous Material and Toxic Substances (BHMTS) of the Environmental Health Administration. This is the Hazardous Waste Division (HWD).

The Program Manager of the HWD reports to the BHMTS Bureau Chief, who ensures consistency and coordination among the programs within the Bureau. The RCRA program responsibilities fall within the Hazardous Waste Division.

The Division currently has 6 positions allocated to the RCRA hazardous waste program. These positions are for the purposes of supervision and management, information gathering, processing and dissemination, developing regulations and drafting the authorization application, permitting, inspections, investigations, and enforcement actions concerning compliance with the RCRA regulations.

State Agency Staff Description

- 1). Program Manager, Hazardous Waste Division
 - a). The Program Manager is responsible for the overall administration of the Hazardous Waste Division.
 - b). Responsible for planning, setting general policies and directing coordination with other local and national agencies on issues pertaining to the hazardous waste program.
 - c). Responsible for legislative development, and the development and implementation of strategies and programs to assure compliance with all hazardous waste regulations.
 - d). Monitors and evaluates the performance, progress and fiscal status of the RCRA program, and the continuing modification and advancement of the District's program to meet Federal and District legislative and regulatory requirements.
- 2). Supervisory Environmental Specialist
 - a). The Supervisory Environmental Specialist is responsible for the day to day activities of the personnel in the Division.
 - b). Makes daily assignments for inspections, complaints and emergency response.
 - c). Responsible for development of annual budget and grant application.
 - d). Produces required quarterly, mid-year and end-of-year status

reports to EPA. Provides monthly performance measure and priority project updates to DOH.

- 3). Three Environmental Specialists
 - a). Two of the environmental specialists are responsible for conducting site compliance inspections and investigations of generators, transporters and TSD facilities. They are also responsible for items b). through f). below.
 - b). Review plans and specifications for proposed hazardous waste facilities, compile statistical data from field sampling analysis, monitor the manifest tracking system, and provide technical assistance to the public and industrial officials to facilitate compliance with appropriate regulations.
 - c). Participate in the development of regulations and legislation and assist in overall program enhancement.
 - d). Prepare reports in the proper format for data entry and review reports generated from the Resource Conservation and Recovery Information System (RCRIS) for verification. Monitor and evaluate reports submitted by generators, transporters and facility owners or operators.
 - e). All technical staff is responsible for the review of facility permits, and developing draft and final permits.
 - Respond to releases or abandonment of hazardous materials at the request of the DC Emergency Management Agency, the Hazardous Material Unit of the Fire Department or citizen's complaints. Provide information as technical consultants in handling emergency responses.
 - g). The third environmental specialist works out of the Special Projects Office and is responsible for the District's Hazardous Waste Minimization/Pollution Prevention activities as well as public outreach initiatives.
 - h). Technical staff positions require formal education and experience in the sciences. Current staff includes engineers, a chemist and a biologist.
- 4). Clerical Assistance
 - a). There is one Clerk/Typist who provides general office support and maintains files, records and reports.

B. Changes in Staffing and Internal Reorganization since the Base

While the designation of the organizational structure from DCRA to DOH has changed as described in Section III (A) above, the internal structure of the Hazardous Waste Division with respect to federal funding remains essentially unchanged. On the non-federal side, the HWD no longer has an Advisor from the Service Facilities Regulation Administration; an attorney from the Office of the Corporation Counsel; a legislative assistant; the Chief from the Office of Health Training and Program Evaluation; and a clerical assistant. These positions were necessary for the development of the District's new hazardous waste management program in the 1980s. As the program evolved and as a result of several reorganizations over the years, only staff necessary to administer the daily activities of the base program was necessary. Through training and experience, they have developed the capabilities to carry out the base program. As we transition into the newly authorized program, changes in priorities, training and the use of management tools, such as enhanced data processing capabilities, will serve to increase program efficiency. However, minimally increased workloads caused by the addition of universal waste and used oil regulations, in particular, point to the need for staff training, and the development of procedures, fact sheets and other public outreach activities. The environmental specialist working out of the Special Projects Office will accomplish much of this work.

The basic make up of technical staff has changed from 2.25 man-years (environmental specialists) to 3 man years since the originally authorized base program. However, one of the three current environmental specialists, as previously indicated was re-assigned, in October 1998, to the Special Projects Office within EHA to assist in the development of a comprehensive Waste Minimization Program for the District of Columbia. This was done at the suggestion of the EPA Pollution Prevention/Waste Minimization staff, who recommended that the District devote one full-time position to Waste Minimization issues.

The remaining environmental specialists have assumed the duties of this staff member in conducting inspections, responding to complaints and emergencies, responding to FOIA requests, regulation development, etc. With the development of improved procedures, the use of training, and management enhancements described above, the current staff will be able to assume the increased workload resulting from full authorization.

C. Changes in Size of the Regulated Community

Tables IV -1. and IV -2. describe the changes in the number of active generators and the amount of waste generated by Large Quantity Generators from 1983 to 1997.

Туре	Base Program Numbers ¹	Revision Application Numbers ²	Change Since Base
Generators	58	674 Active	+616
Transporters	10	2^{3}	-8
On-site Storage Facilities	4	1 ⁴	-3
Off-site Storage Facilities	0	0	0
On-site Treatment Facilities	0	0	0
Off-site Treatment Facilities	0	0	0
On-site Disposal Facilities	0	0	0
Off-site Disposal Facilities	0	0	0
TOTAL			

Table IV-1. Hazardous Waste Handler Universe

¹ Based on data received from EPA on June 1, 1983.

 $^{^2}$ There are a total of 1062 generators that have been placed in the District of Columbia database since the inception of the program. Due to facilities going out of business and other reasons, the total of currently active generators is 674.

³ There are currently no commercial transporters in the District. Two generators are "self transporters".

⁴There were four "protective filers" in 1983. Only one went through the process of obtaining a permit.

Туре	Base Program Numbers (lbs.) ⁵	Revision Application Numbers (lbs.) ⁶	Change Since Base
Generated within the District	1,291,780	954,379	-337,401
Transported into the District	0	0	
Transported out of the District	1,291,780	954,379	-337,401
Stored on-site within the District	0	0	0
Stored off-site within the District	0	0	0
Treated on-site within the District	0	0	0
Treated off-site within the District	0	0	0
Disposed of on-site within the District	0	0	0
Disposed of off-site within the District	0	0	0
On-site treatment facilities	0	0	0
Off-site treatment facilities	0	0	0
On-site disposal facilities	0	0	0
Off-site disposal facilities	0	0	0

Table IV-2. Annual Hazardous Waste Quantities Generated

(

⁵ Based on 1987 data for 8 large quantity generators.
⁶ Based on 1997 data for 15 large quantity generators.

D. Program Changes that have Significant Impact on the District's Efficiency and Existing Program Resources

The inclusion of program changes such as Toxicity Characteristic (TC) did not affect the size of the regulated universe in the District. The vast majority of the generators in the District are dry cleaners and auto repair shops that are either small quantity generators or federally defined conditionally exempt small quantity generators. The large increase in the regulated universe soon after establishment of the base program was not the result of regulatory changes since the base authorization, but rather the result of outreach programs instructing businesses that they might be subject to regulation under the new program requirements.

Regulatory changes such as Land Disposal Restrictions (LDR) affected the program by requiring the inclusion of LDR checklists as part of the inspection procedures and increased the amount of time needed to complete records review and to document inspections. However, these increased activities have been absorbed into the routine of the program over the years and therefore do not create an unnecessary drain on the program.

One resource change that has had an impact has been the reassignment of one of the program environmental specialists to the Special Projects Office within the Environmental Health Administration to assist in the development of a District-wide Waste Minimization Plan along with other P2/WasteMin activities. Remaining staff has assumed many of the duties of the reassigned staff member and once they have completed assignments relating to the development of regulations and this authorization package, they will be able to more fully integrate all of his duties into their daily routines.

The federal de-centralization of RCRIS and BRS will result in more data management tasks, which may reduce the time allotted to inspectional activities. Once current staff has completed integration of the new RCRIS and BRS requirements into the program, we will commence a transfer of the BRS program to the Special Projects Office as a means of evaluating the effectiveness of the District's Waste Minimization Program.

E. Itemization of Estimated Costs and Sources of Funding for Revision

The following Tables outline the budget and sources of funding for FY'84 (the first year of funding under the base program) and FY'00, 01 and 02 (Table IV-3), a break out of the FY 2000 budget by activity (personnel, travel, equipment, etc.) and by funding source (Table IV-4), the source of funding for each staff position for FY 2000, 2001 and 2002 (Table IV-5, 6 and 7), and the proposed FY 2001 and 2002 budgets (Tables IV-8 and 9).
	Budget	Budget	Budget	Budget	
Program Element	FY'84	FY'00	FY'01	FY'02	
Personnel	\$124,153	\$214,913	\$215,555	\$215,5	
Fringe Benefits	13,353	38,470	38,584	38,5	
Travel	2,500	3,080	2,044	2,0	
Equipment	32,000	0	0		
Supplies	2,500	3,300	1,610	1,6	
Contractual	12,332	800	600	6	
Other	3,250	8,850	6,400	6,4	
Indirect Cost	15,827	85,643	85,899	85,8	
Total	206,095	355,056	350,692	350,6	
Federal Share	152,042	266,173	262,253	262,2	
D.C. Share	54,053	88,883	88,439	88,4	

(

Table IV-3. BUDGET AND SOURCES OF FUNDING

Table IV-4. SUMMARY OF FY'00 PROGRAM BUDGET

SUMMARY OF PROGRAM ACTIVITY

ACTIVITY	NON-FEDERAL FEDER		
1 	FUNDS	FUNDS	TOTAL
PERSONNEL	\$ 56,344	\$ 158,569	\$ 214,913
FRINGE BENEFITS	\$ 10,086	\$ 28,384	\$ 38,470
TRAVEL		\$ 3,080	\$ 3,080
EQUIPMENT		\$ -	\$-
SUPPLIES		\$ 3,300	\$ 3,300
CONTRACTUAL		\$ 800	\$ 800
OTHER		\$ 8,850	\$ 8,850
TOTAL DIRECT COST	\$ 66,430	\$ 202,983	\$ 269,413
INDIRECT CHARGES	\$ 22,453	\$_63,190	\$ 85,643
TOTAL PROGRAM COST	\$ 88,883	\$ 266,173	\$ 355,056

TITLE	NUMBER OF	MAN	NON-FEDERAL	FEDERAL
	EMPLOYEES	YEARS	FUNDS	FUNDS
Program Manager	1	.1	X	
Supervisory Environmental Specialist	1	.79	х	
Environmental Specialist	3	3.0		X
Clerical Assistant	1	1		х
Information Technologist		.1		Х
Receptionist	1	.1		Х
Totals	8	5.09	2	6

Table IV-5. PERSONNEL -- FY'00

Table IV-6. PERSONNEL -- FY'01

TITLE	NUMBER OF	MAN	NON-FEDERAL	FEDERAL
	EMPLOYEES	YEARS	FUNDS	FUNDS
Program Manager	1	.06	x	
Supervisory Environmental	1	.69	X	
Specialist				
Environmental Specialist	3	3.0		X
Clerical Assistant	1	1	· 	X
Totals	6	4.75	2	4

(

TITLE	NUMBER OF	MAN	NON-FEDERAL	FEDERAL
	EMPLOYEES	YEARS	FUNDS	FUNDS
Program Manager	1	.06	X	
Supervisory Environmental Specialist	1	.69	Х	
Environmental Specialist	3	3.0		X
Clerical Assistant	1	1		X
Totals	6	4.75	2	4

Table IV-8. SUMMARY OF PROPOSED PROGRAM BUDGET FOR FY'01

(

ACTIVITY	NON-FEDERAL	FEDERAL	
	FUNDS	FUNDS	TOTAL
PERSONNEL	\$ 56,063	\$ 159,492	\$ 215,555
FRINGE BENEFITS	\$ 10,035	\$ 28,549	\$ 38,584
TRAVEL		\$ 2,044	\$ 2,044
EQUIPMENT		\$ -	\$ -
SUPPLIES		\$ 1,610	\$ 1,610
CONTRACTUAL		\$ 600	\$ 600
OTHER		\$ 6,400	\$ 6,400
TOTAL DIRECT COST	\$ 66,098	\$ 198,695	\$ 264,793
INDIRECT CHARGES	\$ 22,341	\$ 63,558	<u>\$ 85,899</u>
TOTAL PROGRAM COST	\$ 88,439	\$ 262,253	\$ 350,692

SUMMARY OF PROGRAM ACTIVITY

Table IV-9. SUMMARY OF PROPOSED PROGRAM BUDGET FOR FY'02

SUMMARY OF PROGRAM ACTIVITY

ACTIVITY	NON-FEDERAL	FEDERAL	
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	FUNDS	FUNDS	TOTAL
PERSONNEL	\$ 56,063	\$ 159,492	\$ 215,555
FRINGE BENEFITS	\$ 10,035	\$ 28,549	\$ 38,584
TRAVEL		\$ 2,044	\$ 2,044
EQUIPMENT		\$ -	\$ -
SUPPLIES		\$ 1,610	\$ 1,610
CONTRACTUAL		\$ 600	\$ 600
OTHER		\$ 6,400	\$ 6,400
TOTAL DIRECT COST	\$ 66,098	\$ 198,695	\$ 264,793
INDIRECT CHARGES	\$ 22,341	\$ 63,558	\$ 85,899
TOTAL PROGRAM COST	\$ 88,439	\$ 262,253	\$ 350,692

SECTION V -- DISTRICT PROCEDURES AND PERMITTING PROGRAM

A. Regulatory Development

Revisions to the District program will require amendments to D.C. Law 2-64, or amendments to the regulations. Amendments to D.C. Law 2-64 will be required to establish accounts and procedures for collecting fees from generators for issuance of EPA Permanent and Provisional ID Numbers. These are District-specific initiatives that will not affect this request for re-authorization. Also, these amendments will be proposed after the final re-authorization request has been approved. Procedures for amending the statutes and the regulations are discussed in separate sections below.

1. Legislative Amendments

The legislative process in the District of Columbia is unique because of its relationship to the federal government. The District of Columbia Home Rule Act of 1973, as amended by the District of Columbia Financial Responsibility and Management Assistance Authority Act of 1995 (the "Home Rule Charter"), establishes the procedure for enacting local legislation. This Act requires the Council of the District of Columbia to vote twice, at least thirteen days apart, to approve any legislation other than emergency legislation. It is then signed or vetoed by the Mayor within 10 working days after receipt by the Mayor. Council can override a veto by the Mayor with a two-thirds majority. Acts are also subject to either a 7-day or 14-day period of review by the Financial Responsibility Management Assistance Authority (Control Board). Once enacted in this manner, the legislation must be transmitted to Congress for a thirty-day period of review when both Houses are in session.

Enactment of D.C. Laws normally takes a minimum of four months, from the time of introduction into the Council to the end of the congressional review period. This process is detailed in the attached flow chart (Figure I). Speedier consideration is available with the cooperation of the Committee of the Council of the District of Columbia to which the bill is referred, and the time could be cut to two months. The 30 days congressional review period is fixed.

The Home Rule Charter provides that the Council, by a vote of two-thirds of its members (9 members), can enact emergency legislation if it determines that the public health or safety is at stake or other emergency circumstances are present. Technically, emergency legislation can be enacted in one day. No congressional review is necessary. This emergency legislation is however, effective for a period of ninety days only. During this period, Council can enact temporary legislation, in effect extending the life of the emergency legislation for up to 270 days. Permanent legislation can then be enacted, if necessary, using the normal legislative process described above.

2. Rulemaking Process

The Mayor is authorized, under D.C. Law 2-64, as amended, to promulgate and revise appropriate regulations in accordance with the District of Columbia Administrative Procedures Act (DCAPA) (D.C. Code, 1-1501 et. seq.), provided, however, that the proposed rules must be submitted to the Council of the District of Columbia for a 45-day review period. If Council does not approve or disapprove the proposed rules during the 45-day review period, the rules are deemed approved. Subsection 1-1506 of the DCAPA requires that regulations be published in a Notice of Proposed Rulemaking in the D.C. Register, not less than thirty days prior to the effective date of the proposed adoption, amendment or repeal of the rule. The public is invited during this thirty-day period to submit comments. If no substantive comments are received and if the Council does not disapprove the regulations, a Notice of Final Rulemaking will be published in the District of Columbia Register stating that the regulations are adopted, effective upon publication of the notice. If comments are received which necessitate substantive amendments to the proposed regulations, they must be republished in a new Notice of Proposed Rulemaking for an additional 30 days.

ĺ

B. Notification

All generators and transporters of hazardous waste, as well as all facilities that treat, store or dispose of hazardous waste, need an EPA Identification number. The identification number, which is a twelve-digit number, is used by the District and EPA to maintain a national database on hazardous waste activities.

Generators can obtain an EPA identification number by completing a Notification of Regulated Waste Activity (EPA Form 8700-12). There are two types of ID Numbers that are used, namely a permanent EPA ID Number and a provisional (Temporary EPA ID) Number. A permanent number is assigned to those facilities that generate hazardous waste on an on-going basis. A provisional ID number is issued to those facilities that generate hazardous waste on a one-time basis.

The District has been granted authority as the Implementor of Record for the issuance of permanent EPA ID Numbers. When the District receives the notification form, the information is entered into the national Resource Conservation and Recovery Information System (RCRIS) database, which generates the ID Number. The ID Number is site location specific, and will not change with a change in ownership at that address. Generators are required to submit a new Form 8700-12 whenever a change occurs in any information on the form.

Provisional ID numbers are issued by the District based on calendar year and in ascending order. In some instances, provisional numbers are issued to a facility prior to the issuance of a permanent number. The District maintains its own in-house database of provisional ID Numbers.

C. Manifest Tracking System

The District's regulations require all shipments of hazardous waste to be accompanied by a manifest at all times, with no exempt hazardous wastes. The District does not have an automated Manifest Tracking System. The District's current manifest tracking system provides for "cradle to grave" tracking of hazardous wastes, through random checking of manifests for completeness and accuracy.

Since the District has not developed its own manifest, generators are required to use the manifest of the state to which the shipment is destined or a uniform manifest from any other source.

The distribution of copies of the manifest shall be as follows: The generator retains two copies of the manifest: One for his records to be kept at the generation site, and one to be sent to the Department. The remaining copies are given to the transporter(s), who keeps one and gives the rest to the TSD facility. The facility keeps one copy and sends two to the generator, upon receiving the waste. The generator keeps one returned copy and sends one to the Department as proof that the waste has reached the TSD facility.

Generators, transporters and treatment and storage facilities are required to keep copies of all manifests on site for a minimum of three years (five years for Land Disposal Restricted wastes), or longer as litigation or enforcement actions require.

Generators, transporters and TSD operators are all responsible for assuring that the manifests are properly completed and signed, and the wastes properly packaged and labeled, and all containers are in good condition before consigning or accepting wastes.

The generator is responsible for initiating an investigation if he has not received a signed copy of the manifest from the TSD facility, confirming acceptance of the wastes within 35 days of shipment. If receipt of the waste by the designated TSD has not been confirmed within 45 days of shipment, the generator must file an exception report with the Department, and with the authorized state regulatory agency where the designated TSD is located (or the appropriate US EPA Regional Office if there is no authorized state program,) notifying these agencies that receipt of waste has not been confirmed by a signed manifest.

Similar procedures cover international shipments, except that the generator must file the exception report with the Department and EPA Region 3 if (a) he has not received a copy of the manifest from the initial transporter confirming departure of the wastes from the U.S. within 45 days of shipment; or (b) within 90 days of shipment, he has not received written confirmation from the foreign consignee that the wastes have been received.

If the Department does not receive confirmation that the shipment was received by the designated facility, i.e., if an exception report is filed, or if the manifest contains a statement from the transporter or facility owner or operator that there was a problem with the shipment, the Department will conduct an investigation into what happened with that specific shipment.

Hazardous waste shipments that are rejected by TSD facilities are to be returned to the generator. The generator should then re-manifest the hazardous waste within 30 days. Rejected loads may be transported to another TSD facility provided that the generator grants permission and the Department is notified. The generator must submit a rejected load form to the Department within five days.

D. Coordination of Information Regarding Interstate and International Shipments

Since all waste that is generated in the District is transported out of the District, hazardous waste manifests received serve as a repository of information regarding the shipment of hazardous wastes to other states. This information is made available to the Federal Program through the biennial reporting system that, every even numbered year, compiles information on waste generated in the District and transported out of the District in the previous year. This information is also available on an as-needed basis when requested by the federal or other state governments.

Since the District is not a port of entry, we do not anticipate receiving any international shipments of hazardous waste. The District has not had any instance of hazardous waste shipped internationally from the District, nor is any anticipated. However, in the remote chance of an international shipment, the District will prepare a notice of international shipment and submit it to EPA. Also, the District requires that copies of manifests for international shipments that are sent to EPA also be sent to the District.

During inspections of hazardous waste transfer facilities, the inspectors validate material stored on site against information on appropriate manifests. Since there are no treatment or disposal facilities in the District, regulatory oversight is not required. For storage facilities, permits prohibit the acceptance of waste from off-site facilities.

E. Permitting Procedures

New Permits--The District regulations require all new facilities that treat or dispose of hazardous waste or store such wastes in excess of ninety (90) days, to first obtain a hazardous waste facility permit. A hazardous waste facility permit application must be submitted to the Director of the Department at least 180 days before physical construction of the facility is expected to commence. The District will utilize the federal Part A and Part B application forms. The District will meet with an applicant for a permit to inform him or her of the requirements of the permit application and to provide technical guidance if necessary.

Upon receiving a permit application, the Department will review the application for completeness. No application will be considered complete unless information is supplied which describes the potential for the public to be exposed to hazardous wastes or hazardous constituents through releases related to the permitted unit. This information must address reasonably foreseeable potential releases from both normal operations and accidents; the potential pathways of human exposure resulting from releases; and the potential magnitude and nature of human exposure resulting from such releases.

The Part A and Part B applications will be reviewed separately and noted deficiencies will be referred back to the applicant. When the Department determines that the application is complete, it will conduct a thorough technical review of the permit

application, and prepare a draft permit or draft denial. It will publish a notice in the District of Columbia Register and local newspapers in accordance with Chapters 46 and 47 and the DC Administrative Procedures Act (DCAPA) to inform the public of the permit application and allow 45 days for public comment. If the Department decides to issue the permit, it will include pertinent conditions to be incorporated into the permit. If the Department decides to deny the permit, the denial will include the reasons for such action. Construction of a hazardous waste management facility may not commence until a final permit has been issued.

Once technical staff prepares a draft permit, it will be submitted for review and comment to the other divisions within the Environmental Health Administration that have an interest in the possible impacts of the facility, before it is published in the D.C. Register for public review and comment.

If a public hearing is requested (by the interested public, affected parties, or the applicant), or if the Department determines that a public hearing is warranted, the Department will conduct a public hearing in accordance with the D.C. Hazardous Waste Regulations, and the DCAPA. The public hearing will provide the opportunity for all interested and affected parties, including the applicant, to present both oral and written testimony. A record of the hearing will be prepared, and answers to all questions raised at the hearing will be provided by the Department within thirty (30) days of the hearing. A copy of the hearing testimony and responses will be made a part of the facility permit application record. If substantive changes are necessary, they will be incorporated into the final permit. TSD facility permits are effective for a period not exceed ten years. Permits may be issued for a term less than ten years.

Permit Renewals--Facility owners or operators must file a new facility permit application with the Department a minimum of one year prior to the permit's expiration date. To apply for a new permit, the permittee will file another complete facility permit application, including those items that require updating. If the permittee has submitted a timely application and the Director does not issue a new permit by the expiration date of the original permit, then the original permit shall remain in effect until a new permit is issued. If the permittee is not in compliance with the conditions of his current or expiring permit, the Director may initiate enforcement action, issue a notice of intent to deny the new permit, issue a new permit with appropriate conditions, or take any other necessary actions.

Upon conducting a completeness and technical review, the Department will publish a notice in the <u>District of Columbia Register</u> and local newspapers in accordance with the DCAPA to advise the public of the application. The Department will make available to interested parties, copies of this application and supporting material, upon request.

At the request of interested groups or citizens, or the permittee, a public hearing will be conducted on the application. This public hearing will follow the same procedures and requirements as for the initial permit hearing. If the General public or permittee does not request a hearing, they may submit comments to the Department. Within thirty (30) days of the hearing date or closing of the comment period, and after reviewing the comments, the Department will process the facility permit. If substantive changes are necessary, they

will be incorporated into the final permit.

Permit Modifications, suspension and reissuance, and revocation--In accordance with Chapter 46, the Department may initiate action to modify a facility permit before it expires, if it is determined that new information or changing conditions warrant a modification of the facility permit to adequately protect public health, safety, and the environment. The Department, private citizens, citizens groups, other agencies, or the permittee may seek a request for a facility permit modification.

Before a permit is modified, the Department will prepare a letter stating the nature of the proposed modification of the permit, and the reasons for such modification. Copies of this letter will be forwarded to the facility owner or operator. A notice of the proposed permit modification will be published in the <u>District of Columbia Register</u> and local newspapers to allow the public an opportunity to comment. At the request of interested groups or citizens, or the permittee, the Department will conduct a public hearing on the proposed modification. This public hearing will follow the same procedures and requirements as for the initial permit hearing. If the General public or permittee do not request a hearing, they may submit comments to the Department on the proposed modifications. Within thirty (30) days of the hearing date or closing of the comment period, the Department will review the comments and make a determination on the permit modification.

Permits may be suspended and reissued, or revoked either at the request of an interested person (including the permittee) or upon the director's initiative.

A permittee may transfer a permit to a new owner or operator only if the permit has been modified or suspended and reissued to identify the new permittee and incorporate other requirements necessary.

A permit may be suspended and reissued, instead of modified if: there are material and substantial alterations or additions to the permitted facility or activity; when the Director receives information that indicates a suspension and reissuance is required; when the standards or regulations upon which the permit was based have been changed by statute, through promulgation of new or amended standards or regulations, or by judicial decision; when the Director determines that good cause exists for modification of a compliance schedule due to events over which the permittee has little or no control and for which there is no reasonably available remedy; when a permit for a facility is reviewed and the Director determines that modification is necessary to assure that the facility continues to comply with currently applicable requirements; when cause exists for revocation and the Director determines that modification or suspension and revocation is appropriate; or the Director has received notification of a proposed transfer of a permit.

A permit can be revoked during its term for the following reasons: Non-compliance by the permittee of any condition of the permit; the permittee's failure on the application or during the permit issuance process to disclose fully all relevant facts, or the permittee's misrepresentation of any relevant facts at any time; or a determination that the permitted activity endangers human health and the environment and can only be regulated to acceptable levels by permit modification or revocation. If the Director tentatively decides to revoke a permit, he or she shall issue a notice of intent to revoke, which is a type of draft permit that follows the same procedures of issuance as any draft permit, including reasons for the notice of intent to revoke, public notification and availability for public comment and a notice of opportunity for a public hearing.

F. Interim Status Facilities

The District currently does not have any interim status facilities. If the District should have an interim status facility in the future, it will follow the same procedures used by the Federal program.

G. Biennial Reports

The Hazardous Waste Management Act requires hazardous waste generators to report to the District every other year (even numbered years) addressing the quantities, nature, and disposition of hazardous wastes generated or managed during the previous year. Congress mandates that this information be compiled nationally and made available to the public. The EPA acts as lead agency in preparing the national report. The District makes locally collected data available to EPA in an agreed upon electronic format.

Beginning in Fiscal Year 2000, EPA no longer will support a Biennial Report (BRS) database. Therefore, it is incumbent upon the District to develop its own database to address the biennial reporting requirements in the future. For the FY 2000 report, we have obtained software provided by State of Florida to enter our BRS data. Unlike the Federal BRS program, the District requires biennial reports from all of its generators, not just the Large Quantity Generators (LQGs). For federal Large Quantity Generators (LQGs), the District utilizes the federally required BRS forms. All other generators are required to report the quantity of waste generated, waste description, waste code and method and location of disposal.

The BRS packages, with appropriate forms and instructions, are mailed to all generators in late December of the appropriate year. Dependent on perceived needs of generators, the District conducts training sessions for all interested generators on how to comply with the BRS requirements. Completed reports are due by March 1. Extensions until April 1 are granted upon request. Responses are tracked utilizing an internal log system. Information is processed (placed into the database) as it is received.

Beginning April 1, the hazardous waste staff begins to issue Notices of Violation to generators who have not submitted their reports. Failure to respond to Notices of Violation results in the issuance of Notices of Civil Infraction for failure to respond and failure to submit the Biennial Report.

H. Enforcement-General Inspections

D.C. Law 2-64, gives the Department authority to enter (at a reasonable time, within reasonable limits and in a reasonable manner), to inspect any facilities involved in hazardous waste activities, copy records and obtain samples, upon presenting Department credentials.

All facilities are inspected on a periodic basis.

Consistent with this authority, the Department conducts two types of inspections to monitor compliance with the program: 1) routine, comprehensive compliance inspections, and 2) compliance inspections initiated as a result of a complaint from another government agency or individual, or if a violation is suspected based on information submitted by the regulated community. The Department's efforts are concentrated mainly on the routine inspections. The second inspection type is generally employed as a means of investigating information obtained regarding possible violations and as part of the program, to determine compliance and noncompliance. Handlers are inspected based on the following priorities:

- 1) Those not inspected in the last three years;
- 2) Those receiving new EPA ID numbers;
- 3) Those receiving high priority from EPA under GPRA goals and federal sector initiatives; and,
- 4) Those covered under District-specific sector and community based initiatives

All inspections and sampling are conducted in accordance with the chain of custody procedures and protocols outlined in the RCRA Inspection Manual that the District has adopted. The inspection procedure is as follows:

1) The inspector enters the facility during normal business hours (unless it is an emergency situation).

2) The inspector introduces himself or herself and presents credentials.

3) The inspector proceeds to conduct a pre-inspection discussion with the facility owner explaining if necessary, the HWMA regulations and other program requirements, the scope of the inspection and any rights (e.g. to sample) provided for by the Act or regulations.

4) The inspector then conducts the inspection using an inspection checklist, reviews records and, if necessary, obtains samples.

5) The initial findings of the inspection are then discussed with the owner.

6) The inspector returns to the office and prepares the inspection report and the Notice of Violation, if appropriate.

7) A copy of the inspection report is sent to the facility, describing the inspector's findings.

8) Enforcement procedures, as described in Section VI E, may follow.

A review of pertinent records and sampling is an integral part of the compliance inspection. If a sample is taken, the investigating officer is required to give the owner, operator or agent in charge a receipt describing the sample obtained. If requested, he will provide a portion of the sample equal, in volume or weight, to the portion retained. The U.S. EPA Central Regional Laboratory in Annapolis, Maryland or another approved laboratory performs analyses of the samples. These monitoring methods are also used as means of verifying the accuracy of information submitted by permittee and other regulated persons.

Inspector training: all hazardous waste inspectors are required to comply with Title 29 of the Code of Federal Regulations, section 1910.120 (e), (OSHA) which requires basic safety and health training for employees involved in governmental recognized clean up operations at uncontrolled hazardous waste sites, corrective action at RCRA sites, and voluntary cleanup efforts at sites recognized by a governmental unit as an uncontrolled hazardous waste site. The 24-hour health and safety training module is a basic module designed for employees engaged in occasional and/or limited specific hazardous waste site work. An 8-hour refresher course is mandated yearly thereafter.

New staff also familiarize themselves with the Division's Standard Operating Procedures, the EPA RCRA Orientation Manual and EPA's basic and advanced inspector's manuals. Training courses provided at the RCRA institute in Denver are taken as resources permit. The District also participates with the Northeast Environmental Enforcement Project, which provides training in basic and intermediate enforcement, multi-media inspections, and basic and advanced environmental crimes investigation.

Staff participates in training provided by EPA in inspections, permit writing, authorization procedures and any training on new aspects of hazardous waste programs as EPA promulgates them.

I. Groundwater Monitoring Inspections

The Hazardous Waste Program has limited capability in the area of ground water monitoring. Since there is only one permitted facility in the District, which is a storage facility, we will request EPA's assistance in performing any groundwater monitoring that may be required at that site. For any releases of hazardous wastes into the environment that may affect groundwater, we will request the assistance of the District's groundwater program and EPA. At any CERCLIS site where a potential impact on the groundwater has been identified, we will refer the case to the District's Superfund program.

J. Waste Minimization/Pollution Prevention Program

One member of the District's hazardous waste staff has been reassigned to the Special Projects Office (SPO) within the Environmental Health Administration. This staff member's main duty is to participate in the development of a District-wide comprehensive pollution prevention/waste minimization plan. The SPO is in the process of developing regulations under the District's Toxic Source Reduction Business Assistance Amendment Act which will establish a program for compiling toxic chemical usage and release information and for assisting small businesses in the development of waste minimization and toxic source reduction plans. The SPO is working on sectorspecific initiatives including universities, health care facilities and auto repair shops, along with the development of programs for the recycling on nickel-cadmium batteries.

The District also works with the Department of Public Works in conducting occasional household hazardous waste collection days, by providing technical guidance and assistance.

K. Availability of Information Procedures

The District is not applying for this part of the program at this time.

L. Appeals Procedure

Section 9 of the District of Columbia Hazardous Waste Management Act of 1977, Chapter 47 of the Hazardous Waste Regulations, and the DCAPA provide a right of appeal for any person adversely affected by any action taken pursuant to the provisions of the Hazardous Waste Management Act or rules and regulations promulgated thereto, including applicants for and objectors to a facility permit.

Appeals are made through DOH. DOH will provide reasonable notice of an appeal hearing. This notice will state the time, place and issues involved. Any oral and any documentary evidence may be received. An official record of each appeal proceeding will be maintained.

Every decision will be made in writing and will be accompanied by findings of fact and conclusions of law.

The decisions of DOH can be appealed by filing a written petition for review in the District of Columbia Court of Appeals.

SECTION VI -- COMPLIANCE TRACKING AND ENFORCEMENT

A. Identification of Members of the Regulated Community

• Identification of revisions that have the potential to significantly increase the size of the RCRA universe

Revisions to the District's program since the base have not had any significant effect on the size of the RCRA universe. Most generators in the District are either small quantity generators or the equivalent of federal conditionally exempt generators. They generate the same types of waste as they always have and they have not been affected by changes in status, dioxin listing, or newly listed or characteristic wastes. Also, there are no producers, marketers or blenders and burners in the District. Nor are there any BIF facilities.

As the base program began, there were a certain number of generators, TSD facilities and transporters. After an initial notification, which increased the universe greatly, the number of active facilities in the District has remained essentially the same.

• Strategies and methods for identifying new members of the regulated community

There are certain categories of businesses that the Department of Consumer and Regulatory Affairs licenses. From the DCRA permitting and licensing information system, we will periodically request a listing of facilities that have been licensed under certain SIC codes which have the potential to generate hazardous wastes. Internally, we will coordinate with the Air Quality Division (AQD), which regulates dry cleaners and auto repair facilities, and the Underground Storage Tank Division (USTD), which regulates gasoline stations and other storage facilities, to determine any new businesses that may be generating hazardous wastes. Staff will also check other sources of information, such as the Yellow Pages, and will maintain a look out during routine inspection runs, to identify potential non-notifiers.

If a potential non-notifier is identified, we will conduct a site visit for the purpose of determining if hazardous waste is being generated. We will inform the owner/operator of our findings and regulatory requirements, with a follow-up Notice of Violation requesting compliance within 14 days.

B. Inspections and Analysis Workload

• Types of inspections needed to monitor compliance with new program activities

Based on the fact that a significant increase in the RCRA universe is not expected, we do not foresee any change in the type of inspections that we will conduct. Current inspection procedures have been expanded to include checklists for LDR, manifest review for LDR, and waste stream analysis. Further checklists will be developed for used oil and universal waste facilities and for Subparts AA, BB and CC.

• Additional sampling and analysis needed to monitor compliance with new program activities

Due to inadequate funding, the District does not have the capability to collect and analyze samples to validate waste stream analyses or for conducting analyses of abandoned chemicals or properties which have been subjected to releases of hazardous substances.

The District relies on facilities to conduct their own waste stream analyses and to submit their findings for review. For released chemicals, the responsible party is required to hire a contractor to conduct an analysis to determine the extent of contamination. Abandoned chemicals are assumed to be hazardous waste unless there is evidence to the contrary.

For used oil, the District will utilize bio-assay or other available test kits to test for the presence of chlorinated solvents as a means of determining that the used oil has not been mixed with hazardous waste.

If funds become available to conduct limited sampling and analysis, the District's Quality Assurance Program Plan (QAPP) will address procedures that must be followed.

• Impact on compliance monitoring of existing program

For the past several years, the District has inspected nearly twice the number of generators required by federal grant guidelines. We do not expect to reduce this percentage, however, on an annual basis we may target different industrial and community based sectors to ensure a representative sampling of all types of facilities within our universe.

Federal GPRA goals and industrial sector initiatives drive most inspection projections. However, in the District, the federal industrial sector initiatives, in many cases, have not applied, because the District does not have the types of facility that EPA may be focusing on. Therefore, the District, in negotiating annual grant agreements, has been free to determine its own sector initiatives. These have included, in the past, dry cleaners, auto repair shops, universities and hospitals. We feel we will be free in the future to focus on other types of facilities that may not be a federal priority. Any new inspectional activities will be combined with our existing activities, which may increase the amount of time needed for a single inspection.

Inspectional priorities may change at the outset, with the addition of the Universal Waste and Used Oil Rules, since these areas have gone unregulated in the past, and the District will need to ensure that these newly regulated entities are aware of new requirements.

C. Data Management

New activities required through the addition of Universal Waste and Used Oil Rules will require adjustments to current information management systems through the addition of new fields in the District-managed database. Biennial Reports are required under the base program and have been tracked using the current system.

The District will continue to utilize the RCRIS/RCRAInfo system to submit required data to EPA, including Biennial Report information.

Since little tracking is required under the Universal Waste and Used Oil rules, District data activities in these areas will be limited to maintaining a list of universal waste generators and used oil handlers.

D. Compliance Monitoring Resources

• Additional resources required to implement compliance monitoring of new program activities

Changes in priorities (e.g. a decrease in the number of certain sector inspections), along with specialized training, will be sufficient to run the program in the long term. However, the bulk of new work will be required in the short term to establish and implement procedures under the new requirements. We will use additional departmental resources in the form of temporary assignments of personnel from other programs or contractual support to take up the slack.

• Level and mix of resources that the State has available to handle new responsibilities

In the past, existing staff, through changes in priorities, incorporated new program areas into their existing workload. For Fiscal Year 2000, the base allocation provided by EPA was insufficient to cover personnel costs for the present staff. During negotiations for the FY 2000 grant, additional funding was requested and approved to cover these costs. For the past several years, including FY 2000, the program has been requesting District funds to support two additional staff members, to no avail. Even so, staff has been able to keep up with its current workload. As indicated by Tables in Section IV, the number of generators and the amount of waste generated on an annual basis have not increased since base authorization. The District does not expect a great increase in the universe of regulated facilities from the newly promulgated regulations. Any new generators that are registered from the additional Universal Waste and Used-oil regulations

can be easily assimilated into the staff's normal activities.

E. Enforcement Process

The District's inspection procedures were outlined under Section V. H. This current section focuses on the procedures followed once a violation has been identified.

The D.C. Law 2-64 does not explicitly categorize violations as major or minor. The District may attempt to incorporate into its enforcement matrix, federal procedures for defining major and minor violations. Currently, violations can be handled either through the Civil Infractions process or by referring a case to the Office of the Corporation Counsel (OCC) for civil action or by submitting the case through OCC to the Superior Court for criminal action. Under the provisions of the HWMA, both civil and criminal penalties may be assessed in an amount not to exceed \$25,000 for each violation, and any person who knowingly violates the provisions of the statute may be imprisoned for a period not to exceed one year.

Enforcement Actions-Specific enforcement actions that can be taken are as follows:

1) Notice of Violation, Threat or Release--Within two (2) to five (5) working days after identifying a violation, the Hazardous Waste Division (HWD) issues a Notice of Violation (NOV). This specifies the alleged violation(s) and orders that corrective measures be taken within a given number of days depending upon the violation. The violator must respond in writing that corrective measures have been taken. Periodic follow-up inspections may be conducted to ensure that the corrective action has been taken. If the violation is not corrected, or a response has not been received, then a Notice of Infraction is issued under the Civil Infractions portion of the enforcement matrix.

Also, if there is a situation which immediately threatens the public health, welfare or the environment, the HWD may issue, or may request the DOH Office of Adjudication and Hearings (OAH) to issue, an NOV together with an immediate compliance order or cease and desist order to prohibit a person from engaging in an unauthorized activity that immediately endangers or causes damage to the public health, welfare or the environment.

2) Informal Compliance Meeting—The Hazardous Waste Division may schedule a "compliance meeting", which is an informal meeting with the violator in which every attempt is made to bring the violator into compliance through a mutually agreed upon course of action. Periodic follow-up inspections are conducted to determine if the conditions of the agreement are being met. If the compliance meeting is not successful or if the violator fails to live up to the agreement reached in a compliance meeting, then the case may be referred to the OAH for issuance of an immediate Compliance Order. HWD will present case evidence and prepare a draft Compliance Order for OAH review and approval. OAH will issue the proposed Compliance Order.

3) Administrative Hearing--Within fifteen days of receiving notice of the

Department's proposed action, the violator may request an administrative hearing by filing a written request for the hearing with the OAH. If no hearing is requested with the fifteen-day period, the Compliance Order will become final. If a hearing is requested, the hearing will be held in accordance with other contested case procedures under the provisions of the DCAPA (D.C. Code §1-1509 (1999 Repl. Vol.)). The final decision of the Department hearing may be appealed to the District of Columbia Board of Appeals and Review (BAR) and is restricted to a review of the hearing record. The decision of the BAR is appealable to the District of Columbia Court of Appeals (D.C. Code §1-1510 (a)(1999 Repl. Vol.)).

The Office of Corporation Counsel (OCC) will represent the Department before the BAR if the violator is represented by counsel, otherwise, the OAH staff can represent the Department. The Office of Corporation Counsel will always represent the Department before the D.C. Court of Appeals.

4) Referral to the Office of the Corporation Counsel -- If compliance cannot be attained through the procedures described above, the EHA Office of Enforcement, Compliance and Environmental Justice (OECEJ) may refer a case to the Office of the Corporation Counsel for civil action. If there is evidence that a person has knowingly committed a major violation of the HWMA or its implementing regulations, the case may be referred to OCC for criminal prosecution. If this evidence has been obtained through a joint investigation with the Environmental Crimes Unit (ECU) or the Metropolitan Police Department (MPD), the case will be referred directly to the D.C. Superior Court utilizing the authority of the MPD.

5) Referral to EPA--If compliance cannot be attained through the Office of the Corporation Counsel, and the Director determines that the case does not warrant referral for criminal action, based on the severity of the violation and time factors, the case will be referred to EPA Region III for federal enforcement action.

Timeframes

Cases involving imminent and substantial endangerment are referred immediately to the Office of Adjudication and Hearings for injunctive relief or for seeking criminal penalties through the OCC. Other cases are handled in the manner outlined in the paragraphs that follow.

Within two (2) to five (5) working days of identifying a violation, the Hazardous Waste Division (HWD) issues a notice of violation (NOV) which specifies the alleged violation(s) and ordering that corrective measures be taken within a given number of days depending upon the violation. A re-inspection is then made to determine whether or not the corrective action(s) was taken and at the same time to determine whether or not the violation has been abated. The inspectors generally do not notify the violator of the re-inspection.

If the violation has ceased then the matter remains in HWD for monitoring. However, if the violation continues then the case is transferred to the Office of Enforcement, Compliance and Environmental Justice for enforcement action.

Within fifteen days of receiving notice of the Department's proposed action, the violator may request a hearing by filing a written request for the hearing with the Office of Enforcement, Compliance and Environmental Justice.

If no hearing is requested with the fifteen-day period, the case is referred to the D.C. Corporation Counsel in three to five days for prosecution. If a hearing is requested, the hearing will be held in accordance with other contested case procedures under the provisions of the DCAPA (D.C. Code §1-1509 (1999 Repl. Vol.)). The final decision of the Department hearing may be appealed to the District of Columbia Board of Appeals and Review (BAR) and is restricted to a review of the hearing record. The decision of the BAR is appealable to the District of Columbia Court of Appeals (D.C. Code §1-1510(a)(1999 Repl. Vol.)).

The Office of Corporation Counsel represents the Department before the BAR if counsel represents the violator; otherwise, the Enforcement Division staff can represent the Department. The Office of Corporation Counsel will always represent the Department before the D.C. Court of Appeals. It takes from eight hours to as long as three months from the time the violation is detected to the time the case is filed in court, depending upon the severity of the violation.

The Act provides that the Mayor may secure relief if he finds that the person is operating a storage, treatment or disposal facility or generating or transporting hazardous waste in an illegal, unsafe or otherwise improper manner that endangers the public health or safety or the environment. The Mayor may seek injunctive relief in the D.C. Superior Court through the Office of the Corporation Counsel. (D.C. Code, §6-710). The Mayor is also authorized to immediately revoke or suspend a permit where the violation presents an imminent and substantial endangerment to the public welfare or the environment (D.C. Code § 6-709(d)). Additionally, civil and criminal penalties in an amount not to exceed \$25,000 for each violation may be imposed.

Follow-up

Within two (2) to five (5) working days of identifying a violation, the Hazardous Waste Division (HWD) issues a notice of violation (NOV) which specifies the alleged violation(s) and orders that corrective measures be taken within a given number of days depending upon the violation. A re-inspection is then made to determine whether the corrective action(s) was taken and at the same time to determine whether the violation has been abated. The inspectors generally do not notify the violator of the re-inspection. If the violation has ceased then the matter remains in HWD for monitoring. However, if the violation continues, the case is transferred to the Office of Enforcement, Compliance and Environmental Justice for enforcement action.

Enforcement of Corrective Action Conditions Outlined in Operating and Post-Closure Permits—The District is not applying for authorization under the corrective action portion of the program. Thus, EPA will continue to handle enforcement of corrective action conditions in the operating and post-closure permits. As part of a work sharing effort, we, upon inspection of a permitted facility, will document our findings and submit them to EPA for review and possible action. As requested, the District will participate in any proposed administrative or compliance hearings with a violator. **Penalty Assessment** — DC Law 2-64 provides that civil fines, penalties and fees may be imposed as alternative sanctions for any infractions of the provisions of the law or any rules or regulations issued under the authority of the law. The law does not contain standards for assessing penalties. Administrative recommendations are based upon the following guidelines:

- a) Severity of the violation;
- b) Actual harm or damage;
- c) Potential harm or damage;
- d) Whether the violation is a first or subsequent violation;
- e) Deterrence effect; and
- f) Economic benefit gained or to be gained from delayed noncompliance.

Under the Hazardous Waste Division's Civil Infraction Program, there are three classes of violations. Class 1 infractions carry a penalty of \$1,000, Class 2 infractions carry a \$500 penalty and infractions under Class 3 carry a penalty of \$100. Failure to respond to a Civil Infraction Notice of infraction results in a doubling of the initial fine, and after the second notice, a tripling of the fine. Recidivism within a three-year period can also result in a doubling or tripling of a fine.

See the Appendices for a listing of Civil Infractions.

Prosecution Referral -- The Department can exercise discretion in determining when a case is transferred to the Office of the Corporation Counsel for prosecution. Decisions for referral are based on: severity of the violation, actual harm or damage, potential of harm or damage, whether the violation is a first or subsequent violation, deterrence effect and economic benefit to be gained. All such cases are transferred to the Office of Corporation Counsel through the EHA Office of Enforcement, Compliance and Environmental Justice. Cases are subject to penalties not to exceed \$25,000 for civil actions or for criminal prosecution monetary penalties not to exceed \$25,000 or imprisonment not to exceed one year. For any violation, each day of the violation constitutes a separate offense.

Enforcement Resources -- The staff and resources of the Office of Enforcement, Compliance and Environmental Justice, and the Office Adjudication and Hearings (DOH), along with the Office of the Corporation Counsel are adequate to handle the expected enforcement caseload.

Enforcement Agreements -- The District has agreed to take timely and appropriate enforcement action and to make Significant Non-complier (SNC) determinations in accordance with EPA's 1996 Hazardous Waste Enforcement Response Policy against all persons in violation of hazardous waste regulations, permit requirements, compliance schedules, and all other program requirements.

The District will maintain procedures for receiving and ensuring proper consideration of information about violations submitted by the public. The District has agreed to retain all

records for at least three years unless there is an enforcement action pending. In that case, all records will be retained until three years after the action is resolved

ĺ

Since the Office of Enforcement Compliance and Environmental Justice and the Office of Adjudication and Hearings are organizational units within the Department of Health, their function and mission is to provide support to the Hazardous Waste Division in implementing any enforcement policies agreed to in the MOA between the District and EPA, Region III.

SECTION VII -- ESTIMATED REGULATED ACTIVITIES

The District generator universe has increased by six hundred sixteen (616) since receiving Base Program Authorization. Transporter and Treatment, Storage, Disposal Facility (TSDF) universes have decreased by eight (8) and three (3) respectively (See Table IV-1). The variations in universe size are not related to the promulgation of new regulations that added additional areas of program authority, but to the unique geopolitical nature of the District. Geographically, the District is a small city, however, politically the District is viewed as a State. As an entirely urban area, with only a few commercial/industrial sections, the District does not have the physical space for an industrial base. Consequently, the generator universe is composed largely of Dry Cleaner and Auto Repair facilities. The variations in universe size are not related to regulatory changes, but rather to the regulated community being made aware of the regulatory requirements through informational campaigns and enforcement initiatives. Table VII-1 lists the regulations that have been promulgated since the District's base program was authorized, the universe that was affected by the regulatory changes and the District's response to those changes.

TABLE VII - 1

REGULATION	UNIVERSE AFFECTED	DISTRICT RESPONSE
State Availability of Information	All: +150	The HWD responds to FOIA requests as received. Each single request takes ~30 minutes. Many requests have multiple sites.
Exclusion of Household Waste	Non-regulated	Answer ~ 5 calls per day requesting information on HHW. Staff oversees 2-4 HHW collection days per year.
Satellite Accumulation	Generators: + 616	Did not adopt. 70% of inspections are to ensure that each generation point meets accumulation requirements.
Small Quantity Generators	Generator: + 616	Did not adopt. Regulate everyone regardless of quantity. Single largest cause for increase in universe size.
Land Disposal Restrictions	All: + 616	Inspecting and completing additional LDR checklist items takes ~ 40 minutes per inspection.
Treatability Studies Exemption	+ 1	Requires 2 hours per report to review required documentation.
Miscellaneous Units	TSDF: + 1	Requires additional staff training and Permit review time.
Toxicity Characteristic (TC)	Generator: < 2%	Most generation static as noted in introduction.
Organic Air Emissions for Process Vents and Equipment Leaks	TSDF: + 1	Requires additional staff training and cooperation with DOH/AQD for monitoring and permit modification.
Recycled Used Oil Management Standards	Generator: + ~ 5 per year	Most used oil generators already regulated. Expect little change. Identify through complaint referral and random inspection of vehicle repair facilities.
Universal Waste Rule	Generator: - 5	Most generators already regulated. Few expected to exit system.
Military Munitions	Generator: + 5	Two staff assigned to all DOD projects
RCRA Expanded Public Participation	TSDF: + 1	Requires assistance of DOH Public Information Officer

REGULATION	UNIVERSE AFFECTED	DISTRICT RESPONSE
Organic Air Emission Standards for Tanks, Containers, and Surface Impoundments	Generator: ~ 100	Add inspection checklist and provide staff training.

(

SECTION VIII -- COPIES OF STATE FORMS

GOVERNMENT OF THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH ADMINISTRATION HAZARDOUS WASTE DIVISION LAND DISPOSAL RESTRICTION CHECKLIST

INSPECTOR'	'S 1	NAME_	 			 	
TITLE					 	 	
DATE							

I. GENERATOR IDENTIFICATION:

A. Generator Name_____

B. Generator Address

c. Generator's type of operation

D. EPA ID #_____

E. Contact person and phone number_____

II. GENERATOR COMPLIANCE:

- A. Does the generator treat waste on site? ____Yes ___No
- B. Were treatment residuals generated from RCRA exempt units or processes? Yes No If yes list type of treatment units and processes.
- C. Does the generator dispose of waste on site? ____Yes ____No

- D. Has the facility identified its restricted hazardous wastes based on:
 - 1. Knowledge of wastes
 - 2. TCLP (Toxicity Characteristic Leaching Procedure) list the restricted wastes identified by both methods (attach a copy of the lab report).
- E. Have any waste streams been mis-classified? Yes No
- F. Does the generator have all the appropriate notifications/certifications for all restricted wastes generated on site? ____Yes ___No
- G. If yes, does all of the applicable information (manifest #s, waste streams and quantities) match with the information on the manifests? ____Yes ___No
- H. Have all treatment standards been tabulated for all the corresponding waste streams? ____Yes ___No
- I. Have any of the treatment standards been exceeded for any of these waste streams? ____Yes ___No If yes, please explain:
- J. Has the appropriate treatment method been utilized?
- K. Comments:

BHMTS/HWD:HUGHES:jm:DRAFT:10/21/1999 G:\FORMS\HWB\CHKLST.LDR

GOVERNMENT OF THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH ADMINISTRATION HAZARDOUS WASTE DIVISION

CHECKLIST FOR SMALL QUANTITY GENERATORS OF HAZARDOUS WASTE

Inspector	(s):
Inspection	n Date:
Facility:	Name
	Address
	EPA ID Number
	Representative
Types of W	Naste Generated:
Quantity o	of Waste Generated per Month:

ANSWER AS APPLICABLE	YES	NO	N/A
1. All containers labeled "Hazardous Waste"	0	0	0
2. Accumulation start date marked on containers	0	0	0
3. Waste accumulated on site less than 180 days	0	0	0
4. Generator handling prohibited/restricted waste	0	0	0
If yes fill out LAND DISPOSAL RESTRICTION (LDR) CHECKLIST.			
5. Generator has an up to date Contingency Plan	0	0	0
6. Generator has training records for employees	0	0	0
handling hazardous waste			
7. Manifests maintained for 3 years	ο	0	0
8. Notification/certification maintained for LDR waste	0	0	0
9. Manifest EPA waste codes match waste streams	0	0	0

Comments:

Forms/CHKLST2.SQG

GOVERNMENT OF THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH ADMINISTRATION HAZARDOUS WASTE DIVISION

D.C. LARGE QUANTITY GENERATOR INSPECTION CHECKLIST

INS	PECTOF	R NAME(S)		
		DN DATE		
A.	FAC]	LITY INFORMATION:		
	Faci	lity Name		
	Addı	cess		
		Identification No		
	Repi	resentative		
	Faci	ility Work Activities and Existing Processes		_
	Gene	eration Points Within the Facility		
в.	COMPI	LIANCE STATUS:		
	1.	GENERAL REQUIREMENTS (GGR)		
		Generator identified all hazardous waste streams generated at the facility?	Yes	No
		Any facility information changed since the Notification (8700-12) was completed?	Yes	No
	2.	MANIFEST (GMR)		
		Manifest system currently in operation and manifests maintained on site?	Yes	No
		Generators correct name, address, telephone number and EPA ID number on the manifest?	Yes	No
		Name and EPA ID number of each transporter included on the manifest?	Yes	Nc
		TSD facility which receives the hazardous waste identified by name, address and EPA ID number?	Yes	No
		Serialized manifest document number included on the manifest form?	Yes	Nc

Description on the manifest of the hazardous waste to be treated, stored or disposed ?	Yes	No
Quantity of each waste stream and the type and number of containers on the manifest?	Yes	No
All of the appropriate signatures on the manifest?	Yes	No
Can the generator verify that there is a program in place to reduce the volume and/or toxicity of waste generated at the installation?	Yes	No
Generator mailing copies of the manifest to the Hazardous Waste Management Branch?	Yes	No
PRE-TRANSPORT (GPT)		
Hazardous waste being stored on site for less than 90 days?	Yes	No
Accumulation start date of waste clearly marked on each container?	Yes	No
At the time of accumulation, are containers clearly labeled as "Hazardous Waste"?	Yes	No
Hazardous waste containers kept closed and in good condition (no corrosion, leakage, or structural defects?	Yes	No
Facility personnel completed a program of training in hazardous waste management procedures?	Yes	No
Facility maintains a record of the job titles and descriptions for personnel involved with hazardous waste management?	Yes	No
Facility has an internal communications or alarm system for emergencies?	Yes	No
Device at the generation points capable of summoning emergency assistance?	Yes	No
Fire control equipment and an adequate supply of water or fire suppressing chemicals available?	Yes	No
Adequate aisle space to allow unobstructed movement of personnel and equipment during emergencies?	Yes	No
Generator has a contingency plan to deal with hazardous waste emergencies?	Yes	No

(

З.

Contingency plan contains a description of emergency procedures personnel will implement?	Yes	No
Contingency plan describes formal arrangements with police, fire departments, hospitals etc.?	Yes	No
Contingency plan lists names, addresses and phone numbers of the Emergency Coordinators and a means of contacting them on a 24 hour basis?	Yes	No
Floor plan of the facility showing the generation points and the location of emergency equipment?	Yes	No
Evacuation plan which indicates the personnel mobilization mechanisms and assembly areas?	Yes	No
4. <u>RECORDKEEPING (GRR)</u>		
Generator keeps manifests on site for the required period? (LDR=5yrs)	Yes	No
Generator has copies of exception reports when manifests indicate the need?	Yes	No
Generator has a copies of Biennial Reports?	Yes	No

C. COMMENTS AND DETAILS OF VIOLATIONS OBSERVED:

P&HWMB:HUGHES:MWH:08/09/91:DGC:9/27/94 HWFORMS\LQGINSP2.FRM

(

GOVERNMENT OF THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH ADMINISTRATION HAZARDOUS WASTE DIVISION Subpart AA, BB, CC Checklist

		Yes	No
1.	Is the facility a Large Quantity Generator (LQG)?		
2.	 Are there any of the following separation processes at the facility: a. Distillation? b. Fractionation? c. Thin-film evaporation? d. Solvent extraction? e. Air stripping? f. Steam stripping? 		
3.	Are there waste streams associated with any separation processes that contain 10 ppmw or greater organic concentration?		
4.	Does any "equipment" come into contact with hazardous waste with a concentration of at least 10 % by weight?		
5.	Is waste accumulated in 26 gallon or larger containers?		
6.	Do tanks, surface impoundments, or containers manage hazardous waste exceeding 500 ppmw volatile organic concentration?		

Yes answers indicate that the facility is subject to Subpart AA, BB or CC. Complete EPA Air Emissions Checklist, OSWER Directive 9938.02(b)

Forms/Hwb/AABBCC

Government of the District of Columbia Environmental Health Administration Hazardous Waste Division

Rejected Load Follow-up Form

1. Generator Portion:

The hazardous waste shipment is rejected and returned to the generator. The generator must process and re-manifest the load within 30 days. The original of this form must be stapled to the front of the documentation of the re-manifested load upon submission to this office:

Hazardous waste was reshipped to: _____

Facility	EPA	ID#		 	 		 	
Manifest	#				 	77 (11, 11, 11, 11, 11, 11, 11, 11, 11, 11	 	
Date		-		 	 		 	
Signature	e of	Gene	rator					

11. Transporter Portion:

The Hazardous waste shipment is rejected and the transporter, having obtained the permission of the generator, finds an alternate TSD facility which is authorized to accept such a waste stream. The transporter must contact the D.C. Hazardous Waste Division (HWD), on (202) 535-1906, upon rejection of the load. Extension of the ten day transfer period is authorized, as necessary, by HWD. All new and amended manifests must be stapled to this form and sent to:

DOH/EHA/BHMTS Hazardous Waste Division 51 N Street, NE 3rd Floor Washington, DC 20002

Transporter Name & EPA ID# _____

Date of Rejection _____

Date D.C. was notified

Date, Name of Person who authorized extension

Reason for Rejection, complete or partial rejection, specify quantity _____

Alternate Facility & EPA ID# _____

Signature of Transporter _____

HWMB:CAMPBELL:jm:DRAFT:2/18/93:FINAL:2/18:93 F:\USERDATA\HWD\Forms\MANIFEST.UNT

Government of the District of Columbia Department of Health Environmental Health Administration

Bureau of Hazardous Material & Toxic Substances * * *

Hazardous Waste Division

Ι	do hereby certify that my facility
	located at
EPA ID#	, is not a generator of hazardous waste at this time. I am aware
that I must notify the Dep	partment of Health, Bureau of Hazardous Material & Toxic Substances,
Hazardous Waste Divisio	n in the event that I begin generating hazardous waste in the future. I
further understand that it	is my responsibility to identify hazardous waste at my facility and that
there are substantial pena	lties for providing false information.

A. \Box I am not a generator of hazardous waste.

B. \Box I request reclassification as a non-handler.

C. \Box I wish to retain my status as a generator.

_____/___/____

Date

Date

Witness

Signature

Forms/HWD/NonGenCert

(

(

(

Mo	nth	Ui Date Da	A Report	aly olve	i fear					aza	ar((8	w do A A	Envi ashir US PF F ar Ins	E ronma sgion, s V blic Par ruccia	va DC Va Cat cat	Prote 2046 St(10	e F n	Pe		iit 									
1. F			ar Au							app				B. Re	vise	d Pa	rt A S	Subr	niss	ion (Ame	ndm	ent :	#					נ
C. F	acili	ty'a	EPA	ID N	umb	er				1	1	D.	Sec	onda	iry IC	Nu	nber	(# a	pplic	abi)								
IJ. ħ	lame	of F	acilit	<u>y</u>]					<u> </u>			<u> </u>																
	Facil Stree		ocati	on (l	Phys	sical	add	1985	not	P.O.	Box	or F	loute	e Nur	nber)		2											
.		•																											
Str	901 ((Cont	inued	3)						Ţ		T]															
Cit	y or 1	ſowſ	•]				<u> </u>									Sta	te	Ziţ	Co	ie		[]					
	nty C If known		Co	ount	/ Na	me					<u> </u>	1].															
B .	Land	Тур	e C	:. Ge	ogra	phic	Loc	atio	n		<u> </u>	1			I		[1							itenc	e Da		
(Ei	nter cc	ide)		ATTI	UDE	(Deg	Kees.	minul	tes, &	seco.	nds)	LOI	VGIT		Degre	905, N		s & sø	conds	<u>¢</u>		Mo		Da	iy 		Yea	Ì	
N.	Fac	llity I	Aailir	ng A	ddre	88		,																					
Str	eet c	or P.(). Bo	×								1		T											[
Cit	y or `	Tow))			}	!			- <u> </u>					1	i	L	Sta	ate	ZI	o Co	de	i	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	l T	1	1		1
																	e n a 11	[]							-				
	Faci me (Conta	ict (i	rers	on u		com			garo	mg .	W88 L			irst)	lach			4									
		!																											
Jo	b Titl	e			1		Ţ]	T	T			1		Ph	one	Nun	ber	(Are	a Co	de a	nd N	umb	er)]		
vı.	Fac	ility	Cont	act /	Addr	ess	(See	inst	ruct	ions)						1						i.			!			
A. Loc	Con	tact Mailin	Addr g Ot	ess ber	В.	Stre	et o	r P.O	. Bo	x			1				1	Ī	1	1		1				1		1	
Cit	y or	Tow	n		I	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>		:		<u> </u>	<u> </u>			<u> </u>	<u> </u>	St	ate	Z	p Co	de	<u> </u>	1	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	
	Ī			I	1	Ţ																			_				

(

(

;

Form Approved, OMB No. 2050-0034 Expires 10/31/02 GSA No. 0248-EPA-OT

(a))	ND	Num	ber	Enti	er fra	an p	ego '	ŋ										5	Secol	ndary	ID N	umb	or (E	nter	fron	pag	o 1)		
VII.	Ope	rato	r Info	orma	tion	(S oc	ins	truct	ions)		>												I	1				
A. I	lam	e of (Oper	ator							-				Τ	Τ.				 	T								
Str	eet c	r P.(). Bo)X	1 1	[]	[ł	1 1			[1	-1 T						T	Г	 					
Cit	y or `	Tow	n															5	state	2	IP C	ode	I	L	L	L			
							<u> </u>														<u> </u>		<u> </u>		-				
Ph	onel	Num	ber ((Arei	e Co	de ar	rd Ni	umb	n)				ſ	В.		erato ype	¥	C	. Cha	nge d India			Mont		ate C Day	hang		aar	
VII	Fa	sliity		ner /	See	Instr	uctio	ns)										Y	63	A					_				
					Leg				I	I			T	T	1	- <u>-</u>				-		T	T	T	1	1	1		
Str	eet d	Dr P.) 0. B	xc	<u> </u>		<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>			<u> </u>										<u> </u>]			I	l	L
01	y or	Tor	D										<u> </u>						State		ZIP C	ode					<u> </u>		
			••	<u> </u>					•																 				
				<i></i>	- 0-	4	4 81		1				1	B	. Ov	vner	Тур	• C). Cha	inge	of Ov		Mon		ate C Dav	han			
			-		a Co		<u> -</u>]							Yes		No								
IX. Fii		<u>cs c</u>	ode	s (in	ord	er of	sigr	ifica	nce;	star	t in k	eft b	ox)		Thi	rd													
	scriptic						1 1	T	T	1					•	criptio	n)	Г					T	7					
	coni scriptic						<u> </u>		1							urth scriptio	n)					1							
				1	ntal	Pern	nits (See	insti	ructi	ons)		2																
	Ente	nnu Ar CO	'ype de)						8. P	ermi	t Nur	nbe	r									C. D	escr	iptio	n				
	-																												
	F																												
								-																					
	ļ				104										2 of 1	7											<u></u>		

(

(

гот арроува, омо но. 2000-0004 сарнов того нос GSA No. 0248-EPA-OT

PA II	D Number (Enter	from page 1)						30001	dary ID Ni		er (<i>cn</i>		m peg	je I)	
Na	ture of Business	(Provide a brief	descri	ption)											
		i Design Capacit								ā.				unnd	at th
		Enter the code lines are provide													
	dditional inform	ation. For othe	:] dilling +] & +		s (I.e., D99,	S99, TO4	and	X99), di	escribe th	e pr	ocess	n (incl	uding	its d	lesigi
C	apacity) in the s	pace provided in	nem)	KIII.											
	ROCESS DESIG	N CAPACITY - Fo	or eacl	h code where	entered in c design capac	olumn A itv is not	, ente epolic	r the cap able (suc	has in a cl	ne p Iosur	roces e/pos	s. I-closu	re or e	nforc	етеп
2	. UNIT OF MEA describes the	SURE - For each unit of measure u	amoun used. (nt enter Only th	ed in column e units of me	sure tha	t are i	listed bel	ow should	beu	ised.				
. P		NUMBER OF U										proce	95 CO	de.	
. r	ACCESS ICTAL				NITS OF	1					APPF	ROPRI/	ATEU	NITS	D F
PRO	CESS	MEA	SURE I	FOR P	ROCESS		CESS		0566			URE F ESIGN			SS
COD	DE PROCI	SS D	DESIGN	CAPA	CITY				CESS	Ga	llons F	Per Dav	: Liters	Per D	ay;
D79	. <u>Disposai:</u> Underground Injecti	on Gallons; Liters	; Gallon:	s Per Da	y; or Liters	T81 T82	Lime			Po	unds F	Per Hou ograma	r: Sho	rt Tons	a Per
D80	Well Disposal Landfili	Per Daý Acre-feet; Heci	-	-	•	T83 T84	Aggre	əgatə Kiln phatə Kiln			ne Par	Dav: N	letric T	ons Pe	er Hou
		Meters; Hectar Acres or Hecta	nes; Cubi	ic Yards		T85 T86	Coke	Oven Furnace		LH	ers Pe	ns Per i r Hour;	Kilogr	ams P	er Hou
D81 D82	Ocean Disposal	Gallons Per Da	av or Lite	ers Per D	ay Y	ll '```	240		,	or	Millor	n Btu Pe	ər Houi	•	
D83	Disposal	Cubic Yards				T 87	Smell	ting, Melting fining Furn	ace						
D99	Other Disposal <u>Storage:</u>	Any Unit of Me	asure Li	5190 091	DW	T88	Titani	ium Ďioxide							
S01	Container	Gallons; Liters	s; Cubic	Meters; (or Cubic Yards or Cubic Yards	789	Methe	ane Reform		G	allons i av [.] Pou	Per Day Inds Pe	r; Liter: r Hour	s Per : Shori	t Tons
502 503	Tank Storage Waste Pile	Cubic Yards o	r Cubic I	Notors		790		ng Liquor R	lecovery	Pe	ər Houi	; Kilog ons Per	rams P	er Hou	ır;
S04	Surface Impoundme Storage	•			or Cubic Yards	T91	Fuma Coml	bustion Dev	rice Used	P P	ər Hou	: Short	Tons	Per Da	v: Btu
S05	Drip Pad	Gallons; Liters Hectares; or C	ubic Yai	rds	Neters;		In The Value	e Recovery is From Sp	Of Sulfur ent Sulfuric	Pe Pe	ər Houi ər Houi	; Gallo ; or Mi	ns Per llion Bi	Hour; 'u Per l	Liters Hour
<i>S0</i> 6	Containment Bulldi Storage	-				792	Acid Halog	en Acid Fu	imaces						
S99	Other Storage	Any Unit of Me	easure Li	isted Be	W	793	Othe	Industrial d in 40 CFR	Furnaces	J					
T01	<u>Treatment</u> : Tank Treatment	Gallons Per Da	ay; Liten	s Per Da	y; Short Tons	794	Conta	ainment Bu		ç	Cubic Y	ards; Ču vr Hour;	ibic Me Galloni	ters; SI 2 Par He	hort bur:
		Per Hour; Gall Pounds Per H	our: She	nt Tons i	Per Dav:		าาอสเ	ment		- 1	iters P	er Hour; Per Hoi	Btu Pe	r Hour:	,
		Metric Tons P	er Hour		ons Per Day; or					- 1)av: Kik	ograms ar Day; (Per Ho	ur: Met	ric
T02	Surface Impoundm Treatment	Per Hour: Ga	lions Pe	r Hour; L	iters Per Hour;						liters P	er Dav; I	Metric 1	ons Pe	y, N
		Pounds Per H	lour; Sha	ort Tons .	Per Day; ons Per Day; or		Mier	ellaneous (Subpart X):	,	TOUI'; O	Million	otu P O	nour	
T03	Incinerator	Metric Tons P Short Tons Pe	er Hour er Hour: J	Metric To	ons Per	X01	Oper	Burning/C		,	Any Uni	it of Mea	sure Li	sted Be	wok
100		Hour; Gallons Per Hour; Pou	Dor Hou	ur l item	Per Hour: Btu	X02		nation nanical Proc	cessing	Ę	Short To	ons Per hort Tor	Hour; I	Netric T	ons Pe
		Day; Kilogran Liters Per Day	ns Per He	our: Gall	ons Per Dav;					- 1	Per Day	; Pouna	ls Per h	iour; Ki	lografi
-	04h e a T ao - Amar - A	Million Btu Pe	r Hour		y; Pounds Per					1	Hour: o	r; Gallo r Gallon	s Per D	ay	
т04	Other Treatment	Hour; Short T Hour; Metric 1	one Por	Hour: Ki	ioarams Per	X03	Then	mal Unit		1	Pounds	Per Daj Per Ho	ur; Sho	rt Tons	Per
		Hour; Short T	'ons Per	Day; Btu	ı Per Hour;						Tons Pe	'ilogram er Day;	Metric	Tons Pe	er Houi
		Gallons Per D Btu Per Hour	•							ł	Short T Million I	ons Per Btu Per	Day; B Hour	tu Per I	lour; o
T8 0	Boiler	Gallons; Liter Hour; Btu Per	rs; Galloi r Hour; O	ns Per H r Million	our; Liters Per Btu Per Hour	X04	Geol	ogic Repos	itory		Cubic \ Hectare	′ards; C ⊢meter:	ubic Me Gallon:	s: or Lit	ers
						X99	Othe	r Subpart)	r .		Any Un	it of Me	isure L	isted B	elow
				1 15.4	TOF		L IN	TOF		T OF			<u></u>	UNIT	
	NIT OF EASURE	UNIT OF MEASURE CO	DE		ASURE	M		RE CODE	MEA	SUR				ASUR	E COD
	allons			She	ort Tons Per Ho ric Tons Per Ho	ur		. D W	Cub	ic Me	ters				C
G	allons Per Hour allons Per Day	U		Sho	ort Tons Per Da	у		. N	Acre	8					B
	ters	L			ric Tons Per Da				Hec	tares.					a
L	iters Per Hour iters Per Day			Pol	inds Per Hour . Ograms Per Hou		•••••		Hon	taro_n	neter				r

EPA Form 8700-23 (Rev. 10/99)

(

(

lease p													c	econdary l	n Mar	mbor //	Entor	from		e 1)		
PA ID I	tumi	ber (E	inter	from p	age 1)		$\overline{1}$	Τ	1				• •								T	
				l Desigr							4								452	700		
E	(AMI ilion:	PLEF	or C	OMPLE	TING	тен х	H (sha	own in	ine n	umbe	r X-11	below): A	facill	ty has a sto	reget	ank, wn	acn ci	an noi	0 000	.700		
							2 00/	NCER	S DES	HON C	ADA	277			C. P	70085	Τ	Fo	r Off	icial		
Line Iumber		Proce: Code	95			2	, PAC					<u></u>		2. Unit O	7 1	otal imber		U	se ()	niy		
	(From	list ab	(999					1. A	moun	t (Speci	11 7 2)			Measure (Enter code		Units						
	S	0	2							5	3	3 7 8	8			0 1						
< 1 			-																			
1		_										•		1	\uparrow						T	
2												•		-	+							m
3												•									+	
4												•	<u></u> ,				┢				+	-
5																					+	-
6												•									\rightarrow	
7																	_	_				
8												•						_			_	_
9																		L			\square	
1 0																		L				<u>.</u>
1 1					<u>.</u>																	
1 2																						
1 3																		1				
	OTE:	Ifyo	u nee	d to lis	tmore	than 1	3 pro	C883 (codes	, attac	ch an i	dditiona	l she	et(s) with th	ne info	ormatio	n in ti	e sar	ne fo	rmat coo		
81	abo	ve. N	umb	er the lir item XII	765 3 <i>8</i> 0	quenti	aliy, ti	aking	into a	ccour	nt any	lines tha	t will i	be used for	"otne	r- proc	e5505	().e.,	uss,	399,		
						ructio	ons fro	om ite	em XII	for D	99, S	99, TO4 a	nd X	99 proces	s cod	es)						
Line	1	Ргос							IGN C					. Process			Descr	iption	Of F	roces	38	
Vumbe Enter #s l		Cod					1. Am	ount	(Specify	n		2. Unit		Total Number								
seg w/Xil		AU 931 -							••••			Measul (Enter col		Of Units								
X 1	Τ	0	4						•								In-siti	ı Vitri	ficat	on		
1																						
2	Γ		Τ	Ι																		
	<u> </u>	<u>_</u>	<u> </u>	1					-													
3	Т	T	T	T ·																		
			⊥	1					•			_ 										
	—	-T	T	Τ								T							<u></u>			
4				<u> </u>					•			<u> </u>										
																			_			_

Ń

ĺ

	O Number (Enter from page 1)			ID Number (Enter from pege	T T
	escription of Hazardous Wastes		And the second second second		
	EPA HAZARDOUS WASTE NUMBER - E waste you will handle. For hazardous was from 40 CFR, Part 261 Subpart C that des	stes which are not li	isted in 40 CFR, Part 261 Sub	part D, enter the four-digit numb	ver(s)
в.	ESTIMATED ANNUAL QUANTITY - For	each listed waste e	ntered in column A estimate	he quantity of that waste that w	rili be
	handled on an annual basis. For each chai of all the non-listed waste(s) that will be t				entity
с	UNIT OF MEASURE - For each quantity e	entered in column F	a enter the unit of measure of	de. Units of measure which mu	ist be
	used and the appropriate codes are:				
	ENGLISH UNIT OF MEASURE	CODE	METRIC UNIT OF MI	EASURE CODE	
	POUNDS	Р	KILOGRAMS	κ	
	TONS	т	METRIC TONS	М	
	If facility records use any other unit of me	easure for quantity,	the units of measure must b	e converted into one of the req	uired
	units of measure taking into account the	appropriate density	y or specific gravity of the w	nste.	
	PROCESSES			and a second s	
	1. PROCESS CODES:				
	For listed hazardous waste: For each lis contained in Itam XII A. on page 3 to ind	ted hazardous waste licate how the waste	entered in column A select th will be stored, treated, and/or	code(s) from the list of process i lisposed of at the facility.	coaes
	For non-listed hazardous waste: For eac	h characterístic or to	xic contaminant entered in coli	mn A, select the code(s) from the	list of
	process codes contained in item XII A. o the non-listed hazardous wastes that po	on page 3 to indicate	all the processes that will be u	sed to store, treat, and/ or dispose	e of all
	NOTE: THREE SPACES ARE PROVID			RE ARE NEEDED:	
	1. Enter the first two as described				
	 Enter "000" in the extreme right Use additional sheet, enter line 	box of item XIV-D(1). evious sheet, and enter add	itional code(s) in item XIV-E.	
	2. PROCESS DESCRIPTION: If a code i on the form (D.(2)).				vided
8. 99.		CRIBED BY MORE			NA 1997 MARCAN
	NOTE: HAZARDOUS WASTES DES	nore than one FDA		il he described on the form as fo	
	wastes that can be described by n				llows:
		s Waste Numbers a al annual quantity (and enter it in column A. On	the same line complete colum	llows: ns
	wastes that can be described by n 1. Select one of the EPA Hazardou: B, C and D by estimating the tot: store, and/or dispose of the was 2. In column A of the next line enter	s Waste Numbers a al annual quantity o te. er the other EPA Ha	and enter it in column A. On of the waste and describing stardous Waste Number that	the same line complete colum all the processes to be used to can be used to describe the w	llows: ns treat,
	 wastes that can be described by n 1. Select one of the EPA Hazardou. B, C and D by estimating the totastore, and/or dispose of the was 2. In column A of the next line enter in column D(2) on that line enter 	s Waste Numbers a al annual quantity o te. er the other EPA Ha r "Included with abo	and enter it in column A. On of the waste and describing szardous Waste Number that ove" and make no other entr	the same line complete colum all the processes to be used to can be used to describe the w les on that line.	llows: ns treat,
	 wastes that can be described by n Select one of the EPA Hazardou, B, C and D by estimating the tota store, and/or dispose of the was In column A of the next line enter In column D(2) on that line enter Repeat step 2 for each EPA Haza 	s Waste Numbers a al annual quantity o te. er the other EPA Ha "Included with abo ardous Waste Num	and enter it in column A. On of the waste and describing szardous Waste Number that ove" and make no other entr ober that can be used to desc	the same line complete colum all the processes to be used to can be used to describe the w es on that line. ribe the hazardous waste.	llows: ns treat, aste.
ofa	 wastes that can be described by n Select one of the EPA Hazardou. B, C and D by estimating the totastore, and/or dispose of the was In column A of the next line enterin column D(2) on that line enter Repeat step 2 for each EPA Haza 	s Waste Numbers a al annual quantity o te. The other EPA Ha "Included with abo ardous Waste Num own in line numbe ne shavings from le	and enter it in column A. On of the waste and describing szardous Waste Number that ove" and make no other entr ober that can be used to desc ers X-1, X-2, X-3, and X-4 be eather tanning and finishing o	the same line complete colum all the processes to be used to can be used to describe the w es on that line. ribe the hazardous waste. low) - A facility will treat and di operation. In addition, the facili	llows: ns treat, aste. spose ty will
of a trea	wastes that can be described by n 1. Select one of the EPA Hazardou. B, C and D by estimating the tota store, and/or dispose of the was 2. In column A of the next line enter In column D(2) on that line enter 3. Repeat step 2 for each EPA Haza AMPLE FOR COMPLETING ITEM XIV (shine estimated 900 pounds per year of chromit and dispose of three non-listed wastes.	s Waste Numbers a al annual quantity o te. er the other EPA Ha "Included with abo ardous Waste Num own in line numbe ne shavings from le Two wastes are co	and enter it in column A. On of the waste and describing szardous Waste Number that ove" and make no other entr ober that can be used to desc ers X-1, X-2, X-3, and X-4 be sather tanning and finishing or prosive only and there will be	the same line complete colum all the processes to be used to can be used to describe the w les on that line. ribe the hazardous waste. low) - A facility will treat and di operation. In addition, the facili an estimated 200 pounds per y	llows: ns treat, aste. spose ty will rear of
of a trea eac	 wastes that can be described by n Select one of the EPA Hazardou. B, C and D by estimating the totastore, and/or dispose of the was In column A of the next line enterin column D(2) on that line enter Repeat step 2 for each EPA Haza 	s Waste Numbers a al annual quantity o te. The other EPA Ha "Included with abo ardous Waste Num own in line numbe ne shavings from le Two wastes are con ignitable and there	and enter it in column A. On of the waste and describing szardous Waste Number that ove" and make no other entr ober that can be used to desc ers X-1, X-2, X-3, and X-4 be sather tanning and finishing or prosive only and there will be	the same line complete colum all the processes to be used to can be used to describe the w les on that line. ribe the hazardous waste. low) - A facility will treat and di operation. In addition, the facili an estimated 200 pounds per y	llows: ns treat, aste. spose ty will ear of
of a trea eac	 wastes that can be described by n Select one of the EPA Hazardou: B, C and D by estimating the tots store, and/or dispose of the was In column A of the next line enter n column D(2) on that line enter Repeat step 2 for each EPA Haza AMPLE FOR COMPLETING ITEM XIV (sh n estimated 900 pounds per year of chron t and dispose of three non-listed wastes. h waste. The other waste is corrosive and be in an incinerator and disposal will be it	s Waste Numbers a al annual quantity o te. The other EPA Ha "Included with abo ardous Waste Num own in line number a shavings from le Two wastes are con ignitable and there in a landfill.	and enter it in column A. On of the waste and describing in azardous Waste Number that ove" and make no other entr ober that can be used to desc ers X-1, X-2, X-3, and X-4 be pather tanning and finishing of rrosive only and there will be will be an estimated 100 pour	the same line complete colum all the processes to be used to can be used to describe the w les on that line. ribe the hazardous waste. low) - A facility will treat and di operation. In addition, the facili an estimated 200 pounds per y	llows: ns treat, aste. spose ity will ear of
of a trea eac will	wastes that can be described by n 1. Select one of the EPA Hazardou. B, C and D by estimating the totastore, and/or dispose of the was 2. In column A of the next line enter in column D(2) on that line enter 3. Repeat step 2 for each EPA Hazardou. AMPLE FOR COMPLETING ITEM XIV (shin estimated 900 pounds per year of chronit and dispose of three non-listed wastes. h waste. The other waste is corrosive and be in an incinerator and disposal will be in an incinerator and disposal will be in ALAZARD	s Waste Numbers a al annual quantity o te. The other EPA Ha "Included with abo ardous Waste Num own in line number a shavings from le Two wastes are con ignitable and there in a landfill.	and enter it in column A. On of the waste and describing in exardous Waste Number that ove" and make no other entr ober that can be used to desc ers X-1, X-2, X-3, and X-4 be wather tanning and finishing of rrosive only and there will be will be an estimated 100 pour D.	the same line complete column all the processes to be used to can be used to describe the w les on that line. Tribe the hazardous waste. (ow) - A facility will treat and di operation. In addition, the facili an estimated 200 pounds per y inds per year of that waste. Treat PROCESS	llows: ns treat, aste. spose ty will ear of tment
of a trea eac will	wastes that can be described by n 1. Select one of the EPA Hazardou: B, C and D by estimating the tots store, and/or dispose of the was 2. In column A of the next line enter 3. Repeat step 2 for each EPA Hazardou: AMPLE FOR COMPLETING ITEM XIV (shin estimated 900 pounds per year of chronit and dispose of three non-listed wastes. h waste. The other waste is corrosive and be in an incinerator and disposal will be in the incinerator and disposal will be indicated to the ind	s Waste Numbers a al annual quantity of the. The other EPA Ha "Included with abo ardous Waste Num own in line number as shavings from le Two wastes are con ignitable and there in a landfill.	and enter it in column A. On of the waste and describing in azardous Waste Number that ove" and make no other entr ober that can be used to desc ers X-1, X-2, X-3, and X-4 be pather tanning and finishing of rrosive only and there will be will be an estimated 100 pour	the same line complete column all the processes to be used to can be used to describe the w les on that line. The the hazardous waste. Now) - A facility will treat and di operation. In addition, the facili an estimated 200 pounds per y inds per year of that waste. Trea	llows: ns treat, aste. spose ity will ear of tment TION
of a trea eac will ine mber	wastes that can be described by n 1. Select one of the EPA Hazardou: B, C and D by estimating the tot: store, and/or dispose of the was 2. In column A of the next line enter 3. Repeat step 2 for each EPA Hazardou: AMPLE FOR COMPLETING ITEM XIV (shin estimated 900 pounds per year of chronit and dispose of three non-listed wastes. h waste. The other waste is corrosive and be in an incinerator and disposal will be the indicate the ind	s Waste Numbers a al annual quantity of the. The other EPA Har "included with abo ardous Waste Num own in line number to wastes are cou- ignitable and there in a landfill.	and enter it in column A. On of the waste and describing i szardous Waste Number that ove" and make no other entr ober that can be used to desc ers X-1, X-2, X-3, and X-4 be rather tanning and finishing o rrosive only and there will be will be an estimated 100 pou D. ROCESS CODES (Enter)	the same line complete column all the processes to be used to can be used to describe the w les on that line. Tribe the hazardous waste. (ow) - A facility will treat and di operation. In addition, the facility an estimated 200 pounds per y prods per year of that waste. Treat PROCESS (2) PROCESS DESCRIP	llows: ns treat, aste. spose ity will ear of tment TION
of a trea eac will ine mber	wastes that can be described by n1.Select one of the EPA Hazardou. B, C and D by estimating the tota store, and/or dispose of the was2.In column A of the next line enter in column D(2) on that line enter 0.2) on that line enter3.Repeat step 2 for each EPA HazaAMPLE FOR COMPLETING ITEM XIV (sh n estimated 900 pounds per year of chron t and dispose of three non-listed wastes. h waste. The other waste is corrosive and be in an incinerator and disposal will be in AAZARD WASTE NO. (Enter code)B. ESTIMATED ANNUAL QUANTITY OF WASTEC. UN MEAS (En codK054900p	s Waste Numbers a al annual quantity of the. The other EPA Ha "Included with abo ardous Waste Num own in line number to wastes are col- ignitable and there in a landfill.	and enter it in column A. On of the waste and describing in azardous Waste Number that ove" and make no other entr ober that can be used to desc pars X-1, X-2, X-3, and X-4 be mather tanning and finishing of rrosive only and there will be will be an estimated 100 pou D. ROCESS CODES (Enter)	the same line complete column all the processes to be used to can be used to describe the w les on that line. Tribe the hazardous waste. (ow) - A facility will treat and di operation. In addition, the facility an estimated 200 pounds per y prods per year of that waste. Treat PROCESS (2) PROCESS DESCRIP	llows: ns treat, aste. spose ty will ear of tment TION
of a trea eac. will ine mber	wastes that can be described by n 1. Select one of the EPA Hazardou: B, C and D by estimating the tot: store, and/or dispose of the was 2. In column A of the next line enter 3. Repeat step 2 for each EPA Hazardou: AMPLE FOR COMPLETING ITEM XIV (shin estimated 900 pounds per year of chronit and dispose of three non-listed wastes. h waste. The other waste is corrosive and be in an incinerator and disposal will be the indicate the ind	s Waste Numbers a al annual quantity of the. The other EPA Har "Included with abore ardous Waste Num own in line number the shavings from le Two wastes are cou- ignitable and there in a landfill. TOF SURE ther de) T 0 3 T 0 3	and enter it in column A. On of the waste and describing i szardous Waste Number that ove" and make no other entr iber that can be used to desc ers X-1, X-2, X-3, and X-4 be rather tanning and finishing or rrosive only and there will be will be an estimated 100 pou D. ROCESS CODES (Enter)	the same line complete column all the processes to be used to can be used to describe the w les on that line. Tribe the hazardous waste. (ow) - A facility will treat and di operation. In addition, the facility an estimated 200 pounds per y prods per year of that waste. Treat PROCESS (2) PROCESS DESCRIP	llows: ns treat, aste. spose ty will ear of tment TION

EPA Form 8700-23 (Rev. 10/99)

(

(

(

Form Approved, OMB No. 2050-0034 Expires 10/31/02 GSA No. 0248-EPA-OT

EP/	ND	Number	(Ente	r fro	m page 1)								Sec	cond	ary I	D Number (Enter from page 1)
							<u>.</u>									
XIV	. Des	scription	of H	azard	ious Wastes (use s	ndditi	onal	she	ets a	s ne	C885			
			EPA Irdous	,	B. Estimated Annual	C. Unit of Measure	L									CESSES
Li Nun	ne nber	Was	te No. v codi		Quantity of Wasta	(Enter code)	0	I) PR	OCE:	ss c	ODE	S (El	nter (xode)		(2) PROCESS DESCRIPTION (If a code is not entered in D(1))
	1	·														
	2						1									
	3		-									•				· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
	4															
	5															• · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
	6															·
	7															
	8															
	9										ļ					
1	0							L			ļ					
1	1						<u> </u>							 		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
1	2							<u> </u>			. 			ļ		
1	3						1_		ļ		<u> </u>		 			
1	4			1			_ _	<u> </u>								
1	5						<u> </u>								<u> </u>	
1	6							4—			 				┣—	
1	7													-		
1	8							_				╂—		+		
1	9										<u> </u>	-	-			
2	0	┢╌┼		+				<u> </u>				+-	╂─			
2	1	┨						+	-	ŀ	+			<u> </u>		
2	2				<u> </u>					┠─		-	-	+		
2	3						+			-	-	+	-			
2	4							+	+	┢		+	╂─		+	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
2				+-		┨────			+		+	+	-		+	
2									+	┨─	+	+	╞		+	
2								╉		╂	+		╀	-		
2	1.2%			+						┨─		+	╂─	+	+	
2										┨──	+	╉─	╢	-		
3									+	╂─	+	+	╞	+-	+	
3	12			+-					+	┨╌		+	╀		+	
3	1			+-	· ·		+	-	+	╉	+	+	╁	+	-	
3	3															

(

(

ĺ

EPA ID Number (Enter from page 1) Secondar	ry ID Number (Enter from page 1)
XV. Map	
Attach to this application a topographic map, or other equivalent map, of the area adanding to at le	est one mile beyond property boundaries.
The map must show the outline of the facility, the location of each of its axisting and proposed inter hazardous waste treatment, storage, or disposal facilities, and each well where it injects fluids under other surface water bodies in this map area. See instructions for precise requirements.	ke and discharge structures, each of its arground, include all springs, rivers and
XVI. Facility Drawing	
All existing facilities must include a scale drawing of the facility (See instructions for more o	iotail).
XVII. Photographs	
All existing facilities must include photographs (aerial or ground-level) that clearly delineate all exis and disposal areas; and sites of future storage, treatment or disposal areas (see instructions for me	iting structures; existing storage, treatment ore detail).
XVIII. Certification(s)	
I certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel properly ga submitted. Based on my inquiry of the person or persons who manage the system, or the for gathering the information, the information submitted is, to the best of my knowle complete. I am aware that there are significant penalties for submitting false information and imprisonment for knowing violations.	ather and evaluate the information those persons directly responsible dge and belief, true, accurate, and
Owner Signature	Date Signed
Name and Official Title (Type or print)	
Owner Signature	Date Signed
Name and Official Title (Type or print)	
Operator Signature	Date Signed
Name and Official Title (Type or print)	
Operator Signature	Date Signed
Name and Official Title (Type or print)	
XIX. Comments	
	. <u></u>
	<u></u>
Note: Mail completed form to the appropriate EPA Regional or State Office. (Refer to instructions for	r more information)

Form Арргоива, Омб №. 2000-0034 Ехрных тикатис GSA No. 0248-ЕРА-ОТ

EF	A ID	Nun	nber ((Ente	n fro	m page 1)								Se	cont	lary	ID Number (Enter from page 1)
XI	/. De	scrij	otion	of H	azaro	dous Wastes	(Continued;	Addi	tione	il Sh	eet)	•					
			A. 1	EPA		B. Estimated Annual	C. Unit of Measure								E.	PRO	CESSES
	ine		Haza Wasi	e No		Quantity	(Enter	(1) PA	OCE	ss c	ODE	ES (E	nter (code)	(2) PROCESS DESCRIPTION (If a code is not entered in E(1))
NØ	nber	(Enter	cod	9) 	of Waste	code)		I 1								In a coop is not sincide in 21.1
				ļ													
				ļ													
	<u> </u>					·····	· ·										
				<u> </u>				 									
								L									
				1													
	1																
	1			1													
	1																
		\square													1		
					†			1									
	+	\vdash															
╞		-	-														
-	_							+							<u> </u>		
╞					+-									-			
┝								+	+			<u> </u>	+	╞			
 		-			+			+	-				·	╞──			
\vdash		╂									-					-	
-								-			┢						
-		-									-						
 		-		+													
		-		-							\vdash						· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
		-									┞	 		-		.	
			_	-								<u> </u>		_			·
	_			-						_	 	<u> </u>					
		 					ļ	_			┡				ļ		
			_		_		_	-				ļ					
								1									

I

EPA Form 8700-23 (Rev. 10/99)

Ć